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PART I

ITEM 1.—BUSINESS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of federal securities laws, which are intended to be
covered by the safe harbors created thereby. Those statements include, but may not be limited to, discussions of the Company’s operating and growth
strategy. Investors are cautioned that all forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties including, without limitation, those set forth under
the caption “Risk Factors.” Although the Company believes that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements contained herein are
reasonable, any of the assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and therefore, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K will prove to be accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking
statements included herein, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a representation by the Company or any other person that the
objectives and plans of the Company will be achieved. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release any revisions to any forward-looking
statements contained herein to reflect events and circumstances occurring after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Overview
The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company” or “we”) is a leading specialty retailer of children’s merchandise. We design,
contract to manufacture and sell high-quality, value-priced merchandise under our proprietary “The Children’s Place” and licensed “Disney Store” brand
names. As of February 25, 2006, we owned and operated 802 The Children’s Place stores and 316 Disney Stores across North America and an Internet store
at www.childrensplace.com.

In November 2004, we acquired, through two wholly-owned subsidiaries, the Disney Store retail chain in North America (the “DSNA Business”) from
affiliates of The Walt Disney Company (“Disney”). (For clarification, the “DSNA Business” refers to the business we acquired from Disney as of
November 21, 2004, whereas the “Disney Store business” refers to the Disney Store business we have operated since the acquisition.) As a result of the
acquisition, these subsidiaries acquired a total of 313 Disney Stores, consisting of all existing Disney Stores in the United States and Canada, other than
“flagship” stores and stores located at Disney theme parks and other Disney properties, along with certain other assets used in the Disney Store business. In
addition, the lease obligations for all 313 stores and other legal obligations became obligations of our subsidiaries. Subsequently, our subsidiaries acquired two
Disney Store flagship stores, one in Chicago, Illinois and the other in San Francisco, California.

We are structured such that our administrative functions (e.g., finance, real estate, human resources, legal, information technology) are shared by both
brands. Functions such as design, merchandising, marketing and store operations are run independently of each other to maintain clearly defined and
differentiated brands. Each brand is overseen by a President who manages day-to-day operations and who reports directly to our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer.
The Children’s Place is a specialty retailer of apparel and accessories for children from newborn to ten years of age. The brand’s merchandising objective
is to offer a unique, colorful, coordinated and balanced lifestyle assortment of high quality, basic and fashion merchandise, at prices that represent substantial
value to our customers.
Disney Store originated the themed specialty retail environment when its first store opened in Glendale, California in 1987. Disney Store offers immediate
access to unique Disney-branded products, such as apparel, toys, plush, and souvenirs in an emporium like setting.
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Our goal is to be the leading specialty retailer in the children’s space by making the very best products accessible to all children. Both The Children’s
Place and Disney Store brands fit within this core purpose; however each is at a different point in its growth trajectory. The Children’s Place has enjoyed
several years of profitable growth and market share gains while the Disney Store is currently implementing various merchandising, marketing and sourcing
strategies in an effort to increase sales and earnings.

During fiscal 2005, we opened 55 The Children’s Place stores compared to 62 store openings in fiscal 2004. We also opened 18 Disney Stores in fiscal
2005 compared to none in fiscal 2004. We closed three The Children’s Place stores and seven Disney Stores in fiscal 2005, the same as in fiscal 2004. Our
store growth plan in fiscal 2006 includes opening approximately 65 The Children’s Place stores and approximately 15 Disney Stores.
We believe that the following capabilities are critical to our long-term success:

Merchandising Strategy. The Children’s Place merchandising strategy is built on offering an appealing collection of interchangeable outfits and
accessories to create a coordinated look distinctive to the brand. We offer an updated, focused assortment of styles in a variety of colors and patterns, with the
aim of consistently creating a fresh, youthful look at value prices that we believe distinguishes “The Children’s Place” brand. We divide the year into quarterly
merchandising seasons: spring, summer, back-to-school and holiday. Within each season we typically deliver two merchandise lines. Each season is built
around a theme that includes an assortment of coordinated basic and fashion apparel with matching accessories designed to encourage multiple item purchases
and wardrobe building.
Our Disney Store merchandising strategy is to offer the whole family a unique, high quality, character driven merchandise assortment at value prices.
During fiscal 2005, we weighted the merchandise mix towards children’s apparel and toys, and de-emphasized the adult apparel category. To date, the Disney
Store business has been heavily concentrated in the Halloween and holiday seasons. To reduce the level of seasonality, we plan to offer more softlines
merchandise during spring, summer and back-to-school. In addition, in the second half of fiscal 2006, we will re-introduce adult apparel, offer more
freshness and innovation in our hardlines business and offer a “good,” “better,” “best” pricing strategy across most product categories to appeal to a broader
audience. These changes in merchandising strategy are expected to primarily impact the second half of fiscal 2006.

High Quality/Value Pricing Strategy. We believe that our high quality, value price positioning is an important component of our long-term strategy.
We offer high-quality clothing and accessories under “The Children’s Place” brand name at prices below most of our direct mall-based competitors. We
employ this value pricing strategy across our entire merchandise offering. Our value price points are an important factor in the broad consumer appeal that
The Children’s Place brand has benefited from over the years. At Disney Store, we believe that combining the strong appeal of Disney characters with our
unique merchandise offering at value prices will enhance the Disney Store business.

Brand Image. We continue to build a strong brand image and customer loyalty for “The Children’s Place” by:
· offering high-quality products at value prices;
· providing a distinctive collection of coordinated and interchangeable outfits and accessories;
· maintaining a uniform merchandise presentation;
· emphasizing our fashionable, youthful image in our marketing visuals; and
· selling our merchandise exclusively in our The Children’s Place stores and on our website.
The Disney Store business benefits from one of the strongest family brand names in North America. The Disney Store experience emphasizes the
“magic” and memories of the Disney character portfolio.
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Low-Cost Sourcing. We control the design, sourcing and presentation of our products sold at both The Children’s Place and Disney Store. We believe
that this control is essential in assuring the consistency and quality of our merchandise and the image of each of our brands, as well as in our ability to deliver
value to our customers. We have established long-standing relationships with our buying agents, vendors and material suppliers. Through these relationships
and our extensive knowledge of low cost sourcing, we are able to offer our customers high-quality products at value prices. Furthermore, we believe that our
integrated merchandise approach, from in-house design to in-store presentation, enables us to identify and respond to market trends, uphold rigorous product
quality standards, manage the cost of our merchandise and strengthen our brands. Our offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai and New Delhi add to our ability to
lower costs, capitalize on new sourcing opportunities, increase our control over product quality and enable us to respond to changing merchandise trends more
effectively and efficiently. We are applying our low-cost sourcing expertise to Disney Store. These plans began to positively impact operating results in the
second half of fiscal 2005; however the full effect of the change in sourcing strategy is expected to occur in fiscal 2006.
Experienced Management Team. Our management team is led by Ezra Dabah, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, who guides the management
of the Company using his broad apparel merchandising and buying expertise, which includes over 20 years in the children’s segment of the market. In
addition, the other members of our management team have an average of 17 years of retail or apparel industry experience and an average of six years with the
Company.
Merchandising Process

While we have separate design and merchandising teams for each brand, the process and planning schedules are similar, albeit at different phases of
implementation at each brand. To execute our merchandising strategies, we rely on the coordinated efforts of our design, merchandising, sourcing, planning
and allocation teams. These teams, in conjunction with senior management, review prior season results, fashion trends, colors and designs that we will offer
in upcoming seasons. Merchandising selects items for production from the assortment of merchandise designs that are created by the design team. In addition,
the Disney Store design team assesses characters and attends toy shows and fairs to determine what toys to include in the assortment. Then, based upon detail
design specifications, including production quantities determined by merchandising and planning, the sourcing team arranges for the issuance of purchase
orders and manufacture of the selected items.
Our design and trend teams analyze and interpret current and emerging fashion trends, translating them into a broad selection of merchandise appropriate
for upcoming seasons. In addition, our Disney Store design and trend teams evaluate the popularity and relevancy of existing characters, as well as the
perceived customer receptivity to new characters, to create a unique and compelling merchandise assortment. Across both brands, work on each of our
seasonal lines begins approximately one year before the season. However, the Company maintains, and at times exercises, the ability to develop and deliver
product on an expedited timeline. The merchandising process includes gathering of samples and market intelligence on fashion trends, which involves
extensive European and domestic market research, media, trade shows, fashion magazines, the services of fashion and color forecast organizations, and
analysis of prior season performance. In addition, at Disney Store, we consult with Disney as part of daily operations. After the design teams present their
ideas, the designers, with the direction of merchandising, translate those ideas into a merchandise assortment that reflects the theme of the season. These
interpretations include variations in fabric and other materials, product color, decoration, character selection and age-appropriate silhouettes. Potential items are
designed using computer aided design technology, which allows for a wide range of style and fashion options. In addition, our sourcing teams and Asian
offices coordinate the production of apparel prototype samples which enable our merchandising teams to ensure that our merchandise will properly reflect our
design concepts, and allow us to get the most accurate

3

understanding of an item’s color, fit, texture and quality. We have also instituted a process that involves working with samples in a simulated in-store
environment. This enables our design, merchandising, visual and marketing teams to create a cohesive, well balanced and fresh approach to each season.
The merchandise management teams create a detailed purchasing plan for the season covering each department, category and key item, based on
historical, current and emerging category trends. The production process takes approximately four to six months from order confirmation to receipt of
merchandise at our distribution facilities. Our planning teams monitor current and projected inventory levels on a weekly basis and analyze sales patterns to
predict future demand for various categories. We regularly monitor sales and maintain some flexibility to adjust merchandise on order for future seasons or to
accelerate delivery of merchandise. Our merchandise allocation teams are responsible for planning and allocating merchandise to each store based on sales
levels, merchandise turns and other factors.

Sourcing and Procurement
We combine management’s extensive apparel sourcing experience with a cost-based buying strategy to control merchandise costs, infuse quality features
into our product and deliver value to our customers. We believe we have a thorough understanding of the economics of apparel manufacturing, including costs
of materials and components. This knowledge enables us to determine the most cost-effective country and manufacturer from which to source each item and
obtain high quality at low product costs. Relying on our supplier relationships, our knowledge of manufacturing costs and our ability to leverage increasing
volumes, we believe we have been able to arrange for the manufacture of high-quality apparel and accessories at low cost. With the addition of the Disney Store
business, we are now sourcing “hardlines” merchandise such as toys, mugs, and snow globes using the same sourcing strategies.

Our sourcing team makes on-site visits to our independent agents and various manufacturers to negotiate product costs, finalize technical specifications
for each product and confirm delivery of merchandise manufactured to our specifications. During fiscal 2005, more than 250 independent manufacturers
located primarily in Asia produced merchandise sold at The Children’s Place and Disney Store to our specifications. Given the timing of the acquisition of the
DSNA Business, we were unable to materially impact Disney Store merchandise sold during the first half of fiscal 2005; however merchandise that was
sourced by us benefited the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2005. To support our growing inventory needs and to control merchandise costs, we continue to
pursue global sourcing opportunities and consider product quality and cost, reliability of the manufacturer, and service and product lead times, among other
factors.

We have no exclusive or long-term contracts with our manufacturers and typically transact business on an item-by-item basis under purchase orders at
freight on board cost in U.S. dollars. We are party to agency agreements with commissioned independent agents who oversee production, assist in sourcing
and pre-production approval, provide quality inspection and ensure timely delivery of merchandise. During fiscal 2005, we purchased approximately 13% of
our products from a commissioned, independent agent in Taiwan, and approximately 11% of our product through a Hong Kong-based trading company. This
trading company is responsible for procurements from wholly-owned facilities as well as contract manufacturers located throughout Asia. We have developed
long-term, continuous relationships with key individual manufacturers and material suppliers, which have yielded numerous benefits, including quality
control, low costs, and flexible working arrangements. In addition, we believe our offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai and New Delhi enable us to obtain more
favorable material and manufacturing costs and quickly identify and act on new sourcing and supplier opportunities. Our Asian offices also facilitate our
prototype sample production and enable us to foster stronger relationships with our suppliers, manufacturers, agents and trading companies. During fiscal
2005, we purchased approximately 35% of our merchandise without the aid of commissioned buying agents or trading companies and approximately 40% of
our goods were sourced from China. Together with our agents and key suppliers, we use tracking systems that enable us to
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anticipate potential delivery delays in our orders and take action to mitigate the impact of any delays. Using our purchase order, advanced shipping

anticipate potential delivery delays in our orders and take action to mitigate the impact of any delays. Using our purchase order, advanced shipping
notification and tracking systems, our independent agents and our sourcing department actively monitor the status of each purchase order from order
confirmation to merchandise receipt.
To ensure quality and promote consumer confidence in our products, we augment our manufacturers’ testing requirements with our own in-house quality
assurance laboratory to test and evaluate fabric, trimming materials and pre-production samples against a comprehensive range of physical performance
standards before production begins. The quality control personnel of our Asian offices, independent agents and trading company visit the various
manufacturing facilities to monitor and improve the quality control and production process. Our Asian offices enhance our quality control by enabling us to
monitor component and manufacturing quality at close range and address related problems at an early stage. With this focus on pre-production quality
approval, we are generally able to detect and correct quality-related problems before bulk production begins. We do not accept finished goods until each
purchase order receives formal certification of compliance from our agents or appointed third party inspectors.
In addition to our quality control procedures, we have implemented a social compliance program designed to promote compliance with local legal
regulations, as well as ethical and socially responsible business practices. The program involves on-site facility visits by either our social compliance auditors
or third party providers, review of documentation, and interviews of facility management and workers. Additionally, our program includes education and
training of our associates and our suppliers in order to ensure the sustainability of our program.

Company Stores

Existing Stores. As of February 25, 2006, we operated 802 The Children’s Place stores and 316 Disney Stores in North America. Most of The
Children’s Place stores are clustered in and around major metropolitan areas in regional malls, with the exception of 98 strip center, 87 outlet and 46 street
stores. All of our Disney Stores are in regional malls with the exception of 12 outlet stores and two street locations. The following table sets forth the number of
stores in each state, Puerto Rico and Canadian province as of February 25, 2006:
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State

Alabama
Arizona

Arkansas
California
Colorado
Connecticut
Delaware
Florida
Georgia
Hawaii
Idaho
Illinois

Indiana
Iowa

Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maine

Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
Montana
Nebraska
New Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
New York
Nevada
North Carolina
North Dakota
Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon

Pennsylvania
Rhode Island
South Carolina
South Dakota
Tennessee
Texas

The
Children’s Place
9
12
2
69
11
15
4
43

21
3

1
38

17
6
5
7
10
4

22
24

22
11

Disney
Store
4

7
1
47
4

7
3

24

6
1
1
15
7
1
2
3
3

1
6
7
10

2

Total Number
of Stores
13

19

3

116
15
22
7
67
27
4

2
53
24

7
7

10
13

5
28

31
32
13

4

0

4

15
1

6

21
1

0

3
4

1

39

15
2
21
2
7

3

73

7

20

1
27
2
9
41
3

11
1
13
47

3

0

12
2
3

19
1
0
0

7
21

4

7
54
5
94
9
27
1
39
4

12
60
4

11
1
20

68

6
1
18
11
1

Utah
Vermont
Virginia
Washington
West Virginia

Wisconsin
Puerto Rico

Total United States and Puerto Rico

6
1
26
15

0
0

8
4

2

10
10

3

737

301

The
Children’s Place
6
6
2

Disney
Store

3

13
10
1,038

0
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Province
Alberta
British Columbia
Manitoba
New Brunswick
Nova Scotia
Ontario
Quebec

3

2
30

14

0
0

65

15
316

2

Saskatchewan
Total Canada
Total Stores

3

1
1
1
1
8

802

Total Number
of Stores
9
7
3
4
3

38
14

2

80

1,118

Store Type.
The Children’s Place. Our average store is approximately 4,500 square feet. The majority of our Children’s Place stores are in our “Apple-Maple”
prototype, which features light wood floors, fixtures and trim. The store is brightly lit, featuring floor-to-ceiling glass windows that allow our colorful fashions
to attract customers from the outside. A customized grid system throughout the store’s upper perimeter displays featured merchandise, marketing photographs
and promotions.
During fiscal 2002, we introduced a new “Technocolor” store prototype. The unique, fun and bright stores use color to create boutique-like settings that
better differentiate the various departments within the store. The stores also feature wider aisles for customers with strollers, and more wall space allowing for
enhanced merchandise presentation and ease of shopping. As of February 25, 2006, 205 stores were in this format, or approximately 26% of The Children’s
Place store base. In fiscal 2006, all of our new stores and remodels (except for outlets) will be Technocolor stores.
Our street and strip center locations represent approximately 18% of The Children’s Place store base and provide opportunities for further penetration in
established markets.
Our typical outlet stores are approximately 6,400 square feet and represent approximately 11% of The Children’s Place store base. Our outlet stores are
mostly located in outlet centers and are strategically placed within each market to liquidate markdown merchandise from nearby stores. Given the brand’s
value orientation, we also sell an assortment of full-priced merchandise in our outlet stores. We view our outlet business as an important component of our
future growth.

Disney Store. The average Disney Store is approximately 4,700 square feet. Currently, we have several Disney Store formats, as follows:
% of
Store Base
40%
34%

Pink and Green
Piperail
Mickey
Millennium
Castle

10%
7%
5%
4%
100%

Outlet

The Mickey and outlet prototypes were introduced in fiscal 2005. We are currently contemplating additional changes to the Mickey store prototype which
we expect to finalize in fiscal 2006.
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Store Operations
Our store operations are organized into ten and five regions for The Children’s Place and Disney Store, respectively. For The Children’s Place brand, we
have three Zone Vice Presidents that oversee our operations into whom regional managers report. At this time, the Disney Store business does not have Zone
Vice Presidents. For both brands, a regional manager oversees each region and has several district managers’ reporting to him or her. Each district manager is
responsible for approximately eight to ten stores, on average. Our stores are staffed by a store management team and approximately 10 part-time sales

associates, with additional part-time associates hired to support seasonal needs. Across both brands, our store management teams spend a majority of their
workweek on store selling floors providing direction, motivation, training and support to store personnel. To maximize selling productivity, we engage in an
ongoing training process, which emphasizes customer service, selling skills, merchandise presentation, procedures and controls. In order to motivate our store
management, we offer a monthly incentive compensation plan that awards bonuses for exceeding pre-established goals.

Store Expansion Program
To determine the location of new stores, we conduct onsite visits and analyses of potential store sites, taking into account the performance of our stores
and other retailers in the area, as well as the demographics of the surrounding area. In addition, we consider the store’s location relative to consumer traffic
patterns and proximity to other children’s retailers.

The Children’s Place. During fiscal 2005 we opened 55 stores and closed three, compared to opening 62 stores and closing three in fiscal 2004. We
plan to open approximately 65 stores and remodel approximately 20 Children’s Place stores in fiscal 2006. Over time, the Company believes The Children’s
Place brand can grow up to approximately 1,200 stores across the United States, Canada and Puerto Rico.
The Company’s new store return on investment (defined as the return on investment for stores in which the then current fiscal year was their first full
year of operation) for The Children’s Place chain for fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 approximated 81%, 87% and 56%, respectively. The Company
defines return on investment as store level operating cash flow for new stores divided by new store investment. Store level operating cash flow for new stores is
comprised of direct store contribution before the amortization of deferred rent, and depreciation and amortization expense. Fiscal 2005 average store level
operating cash flow for new stores approximated $0.4 million, a 20% increase over fiscal 2004. Average store investment includes store capital expenditures,
initial inventory and pre-opening costs less lease incentives and an estimate for merchandise payables. Fiscal 2005 average new store investment approximated
$0.5 million a 29% increase from fiscal 2004. This increase in average new store investment primarily reflects higher construction costs and higher inventory
investments. Fiscal 2005 new stores had average net sales of approximately $1.6 million, a 14% increase over fiscal 2004, which reflects the benefit of the
higher inventory investments and various merchandise and store-level initiatives.

Disney Store. In fiscal 2005 we opened 18 Disney Stores, closed seven, and remodeled 32, compared to the closing of seven Disney Stores in fiscal
2004. Our store growth plans in 2006 include opening approximately 15 Disney Stores. Of these 15 new stores, approximately five will be outlet stores, a new
channel of growth for the Disney Store business. In addition, the Company plans to remodel approximately 25 Disney Stores in fiscal 2006. Over time, the
Company believes the Disney Store chain can grow up to approximately 600 stores across North America.
Consistent with our definition of new store return on investment, since there were no new Disney Stores opened by us in fiscal 2004, the Company has
not computed an amount for the Disney Store business in fiscal 2005.
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Internet Sales
We believe the Internet is an effective sales, merchandising and marketing channel for our existing The Children’s Place customers in the United States,
and is also effective in generating new customers from the portion of the U.S. population that may not have access to our store locations or who prefer to shop
online. Our Internet business represented approximately 2.3% of The Children’s Place sales in fiscal 2005, compared to 1.7% of sales in fiscal 2004. This
profitable business continues to grow at a rapid rate and we believe it is an integral part of our customer service and brand awareness strategies.
We anticipate operating an Internet store at www.disneystore.com beginning in April 2007.

Marketing
We strive to enhance our brands’ reputation and image in the marketplace and build recognition and equity by marketing our image, product and value
message primarily through our store front windows, direct mail, in-store marketing, magazine advertising and “The Children’s Place” private label credit
card. Our direct mail marketing programs are designed to increase sales, promote brand loyalty and create customer excitement. In fiscal 2005, we utilized
television advertising at The Children’s Place in support of the back-to-school season. In fiscal 2006, we expect to focus on increasing the frequency and depth
of our direct mail campaigns which have effectively driven sales and traffic. We also plan to increase magazine advertising as a means to communicate The
Children’s Place brand message to new and existing customers. Our Disney Store business benefits indirectly from Disney’s substantial advertising efforts.
We view The Children’s Place private label credit card as an important marketing and communication tool. Pursuant to a merchant services agreement,
private label credit cards are issued to our customers for use exclusively at The Children’s Place stores and credit is extended to such customers on a nonrecourse basis to us. Our private label credit card accounts for approximately 12% of The Children’s Place net sales. We believe that our private label credit
card promotes affinity and loyalty among those customers who use the card and facilitates communication with such customers through delivery of coupons
and promotional materials.
Logistics

We currently support both The Children’s Place stores and Disney Stores with a 525,000 square foot distribution center in South Brunswick Township,
New Jersey; a 250,000 square foot distribution center in Ontario, California; and a 95,000 square foot distribution center in Ontario, Canada. Our
distribution centers utilize automated warehouse systems, which employ radio frequency technology and automated conveyor systems. Our approximately
150,000 square foot fulfillment center in Secaucus, New Jersey is used to support our Internet business. In addition, we operate other leased facilities on a
seasonal basis to support warehousing needs. Given our current growth plans, we are in active search for an additional distribution center.
Competition
The children’s apparel, toy and media retail markets are highly competitive. We compete in substantially all of our markets with GapKids, babyGap
and Old Navy (each of which is a division of The Gap, Inc.); The Gymboree Corporation; Too, Inc.; Babies “R” Us and Toys “R” Us (each of which is a
division of Toys “R” Us, Inc.); J.C. Penney Company, Inc.; Sears (a division of Sears Holdings Corporation); Kohl’s and other department stores as well as
discount stores such as Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.; Target Corporation; and K-Mart (a division of Sears Holdings Corporation). We also compete with a wide

variety of specialty stores, other national and regional retail chains, catalog companies and Internet retailers. In our Disney Store business, we compete with the
Disney theme parks and with third parties selling Disney-branded merchandise under license. In addition, media items such as compact discs and DVDs can
be purchased in virtually every retail channel. One or more of our competitors are present in substantially all of the areas in which we have stores.
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We believe we have the principal factors to compete effectively in our markets: high quality merchandise at value prices, compelling merchandise
assortments, brand name recognition, good customer service, and easy-to-shop store environments.

Trademarks and Service Marks
“The Children’s Place,” “babyPLACE,” “Place,” “The Place,” “TCP,” “PLC” and certain other marks have been registered as trademarks and/or
service marks with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. The registration of the trademarks and the service marks may be renewed to extend the
original registration period indefinitely, provided the marks are still in use. We intend to continue to use and protect our trademarks and service marks and
maintain their registrations. We have also registered our trademarks in Canada and other countries and are continuing to take steps to register our trademarks
in certain other foreign countries. We believe our trademarks and service marks have received broad recognition and are of significant value to our business.

License Agreement With Disney
In connection with the acquisition of the DSNA Business, two of our subsidiaries entered into a license and conduct of business agreement with an
affiliate of Disney (the “License Agreement”) under which our subsidiaries have the right to use certain Disney intellectual property to operate the Disney Store
retail chain in exchange for ongoing royalty payments. The agreement allows our subsidiaries to operate retail stores in the United States and Canada using the
“Disney Store” name and to contract, manufacture, source, offer and sell merchandise featuring Disney-branded characters, past, present and future. Our
subsidiaries will make royalty payments to Disney beginning in November 2006 equal to 5% of net sales from physical Disney Store locations, subject to an
additional royalty holiday period with respect to a limited number of stores. Beginning in April 2007, our subsidiaries will operate the www.disneystore.com
Internet store, which will feature a select assortment of merchandise offered in the physical Disney Store locations. The initial term of the License Agreement is
through January 2020, and if certain financial performance and other conditions are satisfied, it may be extended at our option for up to three additional tenyear terms.

Employees
As of February 25, 2006, we had approximately 21,400 employees, of whom approximately 1,400 are based at our corporate headquarters in Secaucus,
New Jersey; our Disney Store office in Glendale, California; our distribution centers; and international offices. We have approximately 3,600 full-time store
employees and approximately 16,400 part-time store employees. None of our employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We believe we have
good relations with our employees.
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Executive Officers and Directors
The following table lists the current executive officers and directors of the Company:
NAME

Ezra Dabah
Neal Goldberg
Mario A. Ciampi
Steven Balasiano

Richard Flaks
Amy Hauk
Kevin Mead
Nina L. Miner
Hiten Patel
Susan Riley
Mark L. Rose
Chuck Crovitz
Malcolm Elvey
Robert Fisch
Sally Frame Kasaks
Stanley Silverstein

AGE

52

POSITION

40

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
President, The Children’s Place
President, Disney Store North America
Senior Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary
Senior Vice President, Planning, Allocation and Information Technology
Senior Vice President, General Merchandise Manager, Disney Store North
America
Senior Vice President, Director of Stores
Senior Vice President, Chief Creative Officer
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
Senior Vice President, Finance
Senior Vice President, Chief Supply Chain Officer

53
64
56
61
81

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

47

45
43
43

39
41

56
38
48

On March 8, 2006, so that he may pursue other interests, Hiten Patel, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, announced his resignation effective
as of April 15, 2006. Upon his resignation, Susan Riley, Senior Vice President, Finance, who joined the Company on March 13, 2006, will assume the
responsibilities of Chief Financial Officer and will report directly to Ezra Dabah, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

On April 6, 2006, so that he may pursue other interests, Mario Ciampi, President, Disney Store North America, announced his resignation effective as
of April 29, 2006. While the Company has not identified a successor, the Company is actively recruiting to fill the position. In the interim, Ezra Dabah,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, will assume responsibilities for the Disney Store business.
Internet Access to Reports

The Company makes its corporate governance materials, ethics policy and periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission available on its
website, www.childrensplace.com. These documents are free of charge and are available for viewing as soon as reasonably practical.
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ITEM 1A.—RISK FACTORS
Investors in the Company should consider the following risk factors as well as the other information contained herein:

Ability to Reposition Disney Store
A significant portion of our future success involves integrating, developing and growing the Disney Store business. The realization of any revenue
growth, cost savings or synergies will depend largely upon our ability to:

· secure additional merchandise cost reductions from vendors and suppliers;
· remodel and update the current store fleet and successfully operate the stores;
· source hardlines merchandise at favorable prices; and
· execute our strategies for Disney Store without adversely impacting the existing The Children’s Place business.
There can be no assurance that we can successfully operate the Disney Stores in accordance with the terms of the License Agreement, including taking
the steps necessary to obtain all required consents and approvals thereunder. In addition, there can be no assurance that we can successfully execute any of the
actions above or that our strategies for Disney Store will achieve the results necessary to generate profits. If we fail to adequately integrate the Disney Store
operation or cannot successfully execute its growth strategy, our results of operations will be adversely impacted.

Ability to Anticipate and Respond to Merchandise Trends
Our continued success will depend in part on our ability to anticipate and respond to fashion trends and consumer preferences. Our design,
manufacturing and distribution process generally takes up to one year, during which time fashion trends and consumer preferences may change. Failure to
anticipate, identify or respond to future fashion trends may adversely affect customer acceptance of our products or require substantial markdowns, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Ability to Maintain Profitable Growth
Our future operating results will depend largely upon our ability to manage a larger business profitably and open and operate new stores successfully. We
anticipate opening approximately 80 stores during fiscal 2006, which will include approximately 65 The Children’s Place stores and approximately 15
Disney Stores. Our ability to open and operate new stores successfully depends on many factors, including, among others, the availability of suitable store
locations, the ability to negotiate acceptable lease terms, the ability to timely complete necessary construction, the ability to successfully integrate new stores
into our existing operations, the ability to hire and train store personnel and the ability to recognize and respond to regional and climate-related differences in
customer preferences.
We cannot assure you that we will achieve our planned expansion on a timely and profitable basis or that we will be able to achieve results similar to
those achieved in existing locations in prior periods. In fiscal 2005, our total store base grew by 6% compared to 53% (reflecting the Disney Store acquisition)
during fiscal 2004, and is anticipated to grow by approximately 7% in fiscal 2006. Operating margins may also be adversely affected during periods in which
we have incurred expenses in anticipation of new store openings. We may not be able to sustain the new store return on investment we experienced in fiscal
2005 of approximately 81%. Furthermore, we need to continually evaluate the adequacy of our store management and our information and distribution
systems to manage our planned expansion. Any failure to successfully and profitably execute our expansion plans could have a material adverse effect on our

business.
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We believe that cash on hand, cash generated from operations and funds available under our credit facilities will be sufficient to fund our capital and
other cash flow requirements for our business for at least the next 12 months. However, it is possible that we may be required to seek additional funds for our
capital and other cash flow needs, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain such funds on terms favorable to us or at all.

Risks of Using Foreign Manufacturers; Possible Adverse Impact of Unaffiliated Manufacturers’ Failure to Comply with Acceptable Labor
Practices
Our business is subject to the risks generally associated with purchasing from foreign countries, particularly China, from where a large percentage of our
merchandise is imported. Some of these risks are foreign governmental regulations, political instability, currency and exchange risks, quotas on the amounts

and types of merchandise which may be imported into the United States and Canada from other countries, pressures from non-governmental organizations,
disruptions or delays in shipments and changes in economic conditions in countries in which our manufacturing sources are located. We cannot predict the
effect that such factors will have on our business arrangements with foreign manufacturing sources. If any of these factors rendered the conduct of business in
a particular country undesirable or impractical, or if our current foreign manufacturing sources ceased doing business with us for any reason, our business
could be materially adversely affected. Our business is also subject to the risks associated with changes in U.S. and Canadian legislation and regulations
relating to imported apparel products, including quotas, duties, taxes and other charges or restrictions on imported apparel. Such changes or other changes or
restrictions with regard to China could have a material adverse impact on our business. We cannot predict whether such changes or other charges or
restrictions will be imposed upon the importation of our products in the future.
We require our independent manufacturers to operate in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and our internal requirements. While our
purchasing guidelines promote ethical business practices, we do not control these manufacturers or their labor practices. Any violation of labor or other laws
by one of the independent manufacturers we use or any divergence of an independent manufacturer’s labor practices from those generally accepted as ethical in
the United States and Canada could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Potential Disruptions in Receiving and Distribution
Our merchandise is shipped directly from manufacturers through freight consolidators to our distribution and fulfillment centers. Our operating results
depend in large part on the orderly operation of our receiving and distribution process, which depends on manufacturers’ adherence to shipping schedules and
our effective management of our distribution facilities and capacity. Furthermore, it is possible that events beyond our control, such as a military action,
strike, natural disaster or other disruption, could result in delays in delivery of merchandise to our stores. Any such event could have a material adverse effect
on our business.

Sensitivity to Economic, Regional and Other Business Conditions
Our business is sensitive to customers’ spending patterns which are subject to prevailing regional and national economic conditions such as consumer
confidence, recession, interest rates, energy prices and taxation. We are, and will continue to be, susceptible to changes in national and regional economic
conditions, raw material costs, weather conditions, demographic and population characteristics, hourly wage legislation, consumer preferences and other
regional factors.
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Changes in Comparable Store Sales Results from Period to Period
Numerous factors affect our comparable store sales results, including, among others, merchandise assortment, retail prices, fashion trends, weather
conditions, macro-economic conditions, the retail sales environment and our success in executing our business strategy. During fiscal 2005, we reported a
comparable store sales increase of 9%, on top of a 16% comparable store sales increase achieved during fiscal 2004. Our monthly comparable store sales
results have fluctuated significantly in the past and we anticipate that our monthly comparable store sales will continue to fluctuate in the future. Moreover,
comparable store sales for any particular period may decrease in the future. Further, in February 2006, 260 Disney Stores were added to our comparable store
sales base, which may adversely impact our consolidated comparable store sales performance. Disney Stores’ comparable stores sales results may be more
volatile than those of The Children’s Place given one time events that occur from year to year such as major theatrical movie releases or DVD releases. The
investment community often follows comparable store sales results closely and significant fluctuations in these results may affect the price of our common
stock. Any variations in our comparable store sales results could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock.

Effect of Fluctuations in Quarterly Results and Seasonality on Income
As is the case with many retailers, we experience seasonal fluctuations in our net sales and net income. Our net sales and net income are generally weakest
during the first two fiscal quarters, and are lower during the second fiscal quarter than during the first fiscal quarter. For example, in fiscal 2005, 22%, 19%,
26% and 32% of our consolidated net sales occurred in the first, second, third and fourth quarters, respectively. In fiscal 2005, we experienced a second
quarter loss and expect to experience a second quarter loss in fiscal 2006. It is possible that we will continue to experience second quarter losses in future
periods. It is also possible that we could experience losses in other quarters. Our first quarter results are heavily dependent upon sales during the period leading
up to the Easter holiday. Our third quarter results are heavily dependent upon back-to-school sales at The Children’s Place and upon Halloween sales at
Disney Store. Our fourth quarter results are heavily dependent upon sales during the holiday season. Weak sales during any of these periods could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

Our quarterly results of operations may also fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter as a result of a variety of other factors, including overall
macro-economic conditions, the timing of new store openings and related pre-opening and other start-up costs, net sales contributed by new stores, increases or
decreases in comparable store sales, weather conditions, shifts in the timing of certain holidays, changes in our merchandise mix and pricing strategy.
Moreover, a significant portion of Disney Store net sales are generated during the third and fourth quarters of the fiscal year, which may make our
consolidated seasonality more heavily weighted to those quarters. Any failure by us to meet our business plans for, in particular, the third and fourth quarter
of any fiscal year would have a material adverse effect on our earnings, which in all likelihood would not be offset by satisfactory results achieved in other
quarters of the same fiscal year. In addition, because our expense levels are based in part on expectations of future sales levels, a shortfall in expected sales
could result in a disproportionate decrease in our net income.

Dependence on The Walt Disney Company Character Franchise and Brand
The Disney Store business is driven largely by customers’ interests in apparel, toys and other products featuring Disney characters. New characters
featured prominently in movies and home videos and national marketing campaigns heighten consumers’ interests and in-store traffic. While traditional
licensed properties such as Mickey & Friends, the Pooh Family and Disney Princess may sustain store sales throughout the year, new characters enthuse
young children and lead to increased customer traffic. Our ability to grow the Disney Store business is thus dependent on Disney’s ability to continue to create

new and likable characters.
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The Disney Store business is strongly aligned with the “Disney” brand, the maintenance and cultivation of which is outside of our control. The Disney
Store business is subject to certain risks because it relies heavily on the strong brand identification of the Disney logo, the beloved nature of the Disney
characters and the Disney brand name. All of the products within the Disney Stores are intrinsically tied to consumers’ image of the Disney brand. While the
Disney brand is among the world’s most recognized and highly regarded brands, it is subject to changes in public opinion and ever changing consumer
preferences. If unfavorable events occur that negatively impact the consumers’ perception of Disney or the Disney brand/logo, our future results of operation
and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Competition
The children’s apparel, toy and media retail markets are highly competitive. We compete in substantially all of our markets with GapKids, babyGap
and Old Navy (each of which is a division of The Gap, Inc.); The Gymboree Corporation; Too, Inc.; Babies “R” Us and Toys “R” Us (each of which is a
division of Toys “R” Us, Inc.); J.C. Penney Company, Inc.; Sears (a division of Sears Holdings Corporation); Kohl’s and other department stores, as well as
discount stores such as Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.; Target Corporation; and K-Mart (a division of Sears Holdings Corporation). We also compete with a wide
variety of specialty stores, other national and regional retail chains, catalog companies and Internet retailers. In our Disney Store business, we compete with the
Disney theme parks and with third parties selling Disney-branded merchandise under license. In addition, media items such as compact discs and DVDs can
be purchased in virtually every retail channel. One or more of our competitors are present in substantially all of the areas in which we have stores. Many of our
competitors are larger than us and have access to significantly greater financial, marketing and other resources than we have. We cannot assure you that we
will be able to continue to compete successfully against existing or future competition.

Segregation of Liquidity
The terms of the License Agreement and/or our credit facilities, among other things, restrict the commingling of funds between The Children’s Place and
the Disney Store business, and borrowings and certain distributions from the Disney Store business to The Children’s Place. Therefore, we have maintained
segregation of all cash receipts and disbursements, investments, and credit facility borrowings and letter of credit activity. This segregation could lead to a
liquidity need in one business while there is adequate liquidity in the other business. There is no guarantee that if such a liquidity need were to arise, we would
have the ability to make the appropriate inter-company distributions. In addition, there can be no guarantee that external funds would be available in a timely
manner, at an appropriate cost or in a manner that would meet the requirements of the parties to the License Agreements or our credit facilities. If required
funds could not be provided to either of our businesses, through internal or external sources, our financial position and results of operations could be
materially adversely impacted.

Foreign Currency Fluctuations
While our business is primarily conducted in U.S. dollars, we do operate in certain foreign currencies. However, because we purchase substantially all
of our products overseas, the cost of these products may be affected by changes in the values of the relevant currencies. To date, we have not significantly
hedged against foreign currency fluctuations; however we may pursue hedging alternatives in the future. Since our expansion into Canada in fiscal 2002, our
exposure to the risk of foreign currency fluctuations has increased. Foreign currency fluctuations could have a material adverse effect on our business and
results of operations.

Dependence on Unaffiliated Manufacturers and Independent Agents
We do not own or operate any manufacturing facilities, and therefore, are dependent upon independent third parties for the manufacture of all of our
products. Our products are currently
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manufactured to our specifications, pursuant to purchase orders, by more than 250 independent manufacturers located primarily in Asia. We have no
exclusive or long-term contracts with our manufacturers and compete with other companies for manufacturing facilities. In addition, we have no formal written
agreement with the Hong Kong-based trading company through which we purchased approximately 11% of our products in fiscal 2005. We also purchased
approximately 13% of our products in fiscal 2005 from a single agent in Taiwan, which has an exclusive arrangement with us, but is not obligated to sell
exclusively to us. Although we believe that we have established close relationships with our trading company, independent agents and principal manufacturers,
the inability to maintain such relationships or to find additional sources to support future growth could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Material Breach of Disney License Agreement
The Disney Store business operates under a License Agreement with an affiliate of Disney, under which we have the right to use certain Disney
intellectual property in the Disney Store business in exchange for ongoing royalty payments. Upon the occurrence of certain specified events, including an
uncured breach of royalty non-payment and other repeated material breaches of the License Agreement by our subsidiaries, certain material breaches by us of a
guaranty and commitment, and certain changes in ownership or control of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. or the subsidiaries that own and operate the
Disney Store business, Disney will have the right to terminate the License Agreement. Some of these events may be beyond our control. If the License
Agreement is terminated, the Disney affiliate may require us to sell the Disney Store business back to Disney or one of its affiliates or to a third party at a price
to be determined by appraisal or, in the absence of such sale, to wind down the Disney Store business in an orderly manner.

Risk of Operating Stores in Foreign Countries
During fiscal 2002, we opened our first The Children’s Place stores in Canada and during fiscal 2004 we opened our first The Children’s Place stores in
Puerto Rico. We cannot assure you that we will be able to address in a timely fashion the risks of operating stores in foreign countries such as governmental
requirements over merchandise importation, employment, taxation and multi-lingual requirements.

Threat of Terrorism or Military Actions
We are dependent upon the continued popularity of malls as shopping destinations and the ability of mall anchor tenants and other attractions to generate
customer traffic in the malls where our stores are located. Any terrorist act that decreases the level of mall traffic or other shopping traffic could have a material
adverse effect on our business. In addition, military actions could negatively impact mall traffic, which would have a material adverse effect on our business.

Reliance on Information Technology
We rely on various information systems to manage our operations and regularly make investments to upgrade, enhance or replace such systems. Any
delays or difficulties in transitioning to these or other new systems, or in integrating these systems with our current systems, or any other disruptions affecting
our information systems, could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Dependence on Key Personnel
The leadership and expertise of Ezra Dabah, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, has been instrumental in our success. The loss of the services of
Mr. Dabah could have a material adverse effect on our business. We have entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Dabah, but we cannot assure you
that we will be able to retain his services. In addition, other members of management have substantial
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experience and expertise in our business and have made significant contributions to its growth and success. Most of these members of management do not have
employment agreements with us. The loss of services of one or more of these individuals, or the inability to attract additional qualified managers or other
personnel, could have a material adverse effect on our business. We are not protected by any key-man or similar life insurance for any of our executive
officers.

Control by Certain Stockholders
Ezra Dabah, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and certain members of his family beneficially own a significant percentage of our outstanding
common stock. As a result, Mr. Dabah has, and will continue to have, significant influence on the election of our directors and on determining the outcome of
any matter submitted to a vote of our stockholders for approval.

Stock Price Volatility
Our common stock, which is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market, has experienced and is likely to experience significant price and volume
fluctuations, which could adversely affect the market price of the common stock without regard to our operating performance. In addition, we believe that
factors such as quarterly fluctuations in our financial results, our comparable store sales results, announcements by other retailers or Disney, the overall
economy, the geopolitical environment and the condition of the financial markets could cause the price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially.

Legislative Actions and New Accounting Pronouncements
In order to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and any subsequent guidance that may come from the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board, future changes in listing standards by Nasdaq, or future accounting guidance or disclosure requirements by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, we may be required to enhance our internal controls, hire additional personnel and utilize additional outside legal, accounting and advisory
services, all of which could cause our general and administrative expenses to increase. Effective in the first quarter of fiscal 2006, we will be required to
recognize compensation expense for stock-based compensation, which will negatively impact future operating results. Proposed changes in the accounting
rules, including legislative and other proposals could increase the expenses we report under generally accepted accounting principles in the United States and
affect our operating results.

Anti-Takeover Provisions of Applicable Delaware Law and Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws
Certain provisions of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the “Certificate of Incorporation”) and Amended and Restated By-laws (the
“By-laws”) may have anti-takeover effects and discourage, delay or prevent a takeover attempt that a stockholder might consider in the stockholder’s best
interest. These provisions, among other things:

· classify our Board of Directors into three classes, each of which will serve for different three year periods;
· provide that only the Chairman of the Board of Directors may call special meetings of the stockholders;
· provide that a director may be removed by stockholders only for cause by a vote of the holders of more than two-thirds of the shares entitled to vote;
· provide that all vacancies on our Board of Directors, including any vacancies resulting from an increase in the number of directors, may be filled by a
majority of the remaining directors, even if the number is less than a quorum;
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· establish certain advance notice procedures for nominations of candidates for election as directors and for stockholder proposals to be considered at
stockholders’ meetings; and

· require a vote of the holders of more than two-thirds of the shares entitled to vote in order to amend the foregoing provisions and certain other
provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws.

In addition, the Board of Directors, without further action of the stockholders, is permitted to issue and fix the terms of preferred stock, which may have
rights senior to those of the common stock. Moreover, we are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, as amended,
which would require a two-thirds vote of stockholders for any business combination (such as a merger or sales of all or substantially all of our assets) between
The Children’s Place and an “interested stockholder,” unless such transaction is approved by a majority of the disinterested directors or meets certain other
requirements. In certain circumstances, the existence of these provisions, which inhibit or discourage takeover attempts, could reduce the market value of our
common stock.

ITEM 1B.—UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2.—PROPERTIES
We currently support both The Children’s Place stores and Disney Stores with a 525,000 square foot distribution center in South Brunswick Township,
New Jersey; a 250,000 square foot distribution center in Ontario, California; and a 95,000 square foot distribution center in Ontario, Canada. Our
distribution centers utilize automated warehouse systems, which employ radio frequency technology and automated conveyor systems. Our approximately
150,000 square foot fulfillment center in Secaucus, New Jersey is used to support our Internet business. In addition, we operate other leased facilities on a
seasonal basis to support warehousing needs as well as our headquarters, in Secaucus, New Jersey and Glendale, California. We also have offices in Hong
Kong, Shanghai and New Delhi to capitalize on new and existing sourcing opportunities and monitor product quality. Given our current growth plans, we are
in active search for an additional distribution center and corporate office facility.
We lease all of our existing store locations, with the store lease terms expiring through 2023. The average unexpired store lease term for The Children’s
Place and Disney Store is 5.5 and 4.4 years, respectively. The leases for most of our existing stores are for initial terms of 10 years and provide for contingent
rent based upon a percentage of sales in excess of specific minimums. Leases for future stores will likely include similar contingent rent provisions.

ITEM 3.—LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are involved in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of our business. In the opinion of management, any ultimate liability arising out
of such proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on our business.

ITEM 4.—SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
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PART II

ITEM 5.—MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “PLCE.” The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales
prices on the Nasdaq National Market of our common stock for the fiscal periods indicated.
High

Low

$49.15
52.94
49.46
54.64

$ 36.60

$ 32.85
27.12

$25.59
17.63
16.77
29.90

2005

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

37.14
33.22

41.16

2004

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

31.10

38.95

On February 25, 2006, the last reported sale price of our common stock was $44.26 per share, the number of holders of record of our common stock
was approximately 110 and the number of beneficial holders of our common stock was approximately 17,000.
We have never paid dividends on our common stock or purchased any of our common stock. Our Board of Directors presently intends to retain any
future earnings to finance our operations and the expansion of the Company. Our credit facilities and/or License Agreement prohibit any payment of dividends
and limit the amount of purchases of our common stock. Any determination in the future to pay dividends or purchase any of our common stock will depend

upon our earnings, financial condition, cash requirements, future prospects, covenants in our credit facilities and any future debt instruments and such other
factors as the Board of Directors deems appropriate at the time.
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ITEM 6.—SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following table sets forth certain historical financial and operating data for The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries. The selected
historical financial data is qualified by reference to, and should be read in conjunction with, Item 7.—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations, and the financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report.
Statement of Operations Data
(in thousands, except per share data):
Net sales

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Asset impairment charges(4)
Depreciation and amortization
Operating income
Interest (income) expense, net
Income before income taxes and extraordinary gain
Provision for income taxes
Income before extraordinary gain
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes(5)
Net income
Diluted net income per common share before
extraordinary gain
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes(5)
Diluted net income per common share

January 28,
2006

January 29,
2005(2)(3)

$ 1,668,736 $1,157,548
1,007,496
705,681
661,240
451,867
505,440
333,554

$
$
$

Diluted weighted average common shares and
common share equivalents outstanding

244

164

52,886
102,670

49,049
69,100

(563)
103,233
39,323

69,078
26,595

22

63,910
1,665
65,575 $

42,483

2.21 $
0.06
2.27 $

1.54

273

42,756

Fiscal Year Ended (1)

January 31,
2004(3)

28,877

27,633

1,119

1,056

February 2,
2002(3)

$ 671,409
415,623
255,786
201,058
4,539
41,012
9,177
(547)
9,724
4,089

31,335
72,349
252
72,097
27,761

22,701
—
$ 22,701

$

5,635
—
5,635

44,336
—
$ 44,336

$

$

0.21

0.01

1.55

February 1,
2003(3)

$ 797,938
476,961
320,977
238,190
448
46,251
36,088
(255)
36,343
13,642

$

0.84
—
0.84

$ 656,956
372,210
284,746
181,062
0

$

1.64

$

1.64

—
$

0.21

—

26,978

27,099

26,964

Selected Operating Data:

Number of stores open at end of period
Comparable store sales increase (decrease)(2)(6)
Average net sales per store (in thousands)(2)(7)
Average square footage per store(8)
Average net sales per gross square foot(2)(9)
Balance Sheet Data (in thousands):
Working capital

Total assets
Long-term debt
Stockholders’ equity

9%

$
$
$

691
4%

16%

643
(16)%

1,501 $
4,562
329 $

1,344
4,591

$

1,159
4,472

$

1,137
4,398

$

300

$

262

$

263

$

233,930 $
757,320

177,210
616,162
0
300,907

0

392,866

$ 114,274
415,506

520
(8)%
1,389
4,307
334

$ 79,913
361,550

$ 77,364
325,930

0

0

245,854

218,113

0
209,392

(1)

All references to our fiscal years refer to the 52- or 53-week year ended on the Saturday nearest to January 31 of the following year. For example, references to fiscal 2005
mean the fiscal year ended January 28, 2006.

(2)

The statement of operations data for fiscal 2004 includes ten weeks of operations for the Disney Stores from their acquisition date of November 21, 2004. The Disney
Stores were not included in average net sales per store and
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average net sales per gross foot during fiscal 2004 since we did not own them for the full fiscal period. The Disney Stores were also not included in comparable store sales in
fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2005.
(3)

In fiscal 2005, we retrospectively applied the new accounting principle regarding expensing occupancy costs incurred during the construction period. (See Note 4
—Retrospective Application of Construction Period Occupancy Costs in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.)

(4)

Asset impairment charges represent the write down of fixed assets in under performing stores to fair value. We impaired assets in one store in fiscal 2005, one store in fiscal
2004, one store in fiscal 2003 and 19 stores in fiscal 2002.

(5)

The extraordinary gain represents the fair value of net assets acquired in excess of the purchase price paid for the DSNA Business, after all long-lived assets were written
off.

(6)

We define comparable store sales as net sales from stores that have been open for at least 14 full months and that have not been substantially remodeled during that time.

(7)

Average net sales per store represents net sales from stores open throughout the full period divided by the number of such stores.

(8)

Average square footage per store represents the square footage of stores open on the last day of the period divided by the number of such stores.

(9)

Average net sales per gross square foot represents net sales from stores open throughout the full period divided by the gross square footage of such stores.
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ITEM 7.—MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our audited financial statements and notes thereto included in Item 15. The following
discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual results could differ materially from those
discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed
below and elsewhere in this report, particularly in “Risk Factors.”
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been adjusted as described in Note 4—Retrospective Application of Construction
Period Occupancy Costs and the following discussion has been revised to reflect the effects of the retrospective application.
Overview
The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company” or “we”) is a specialty retailer of merchandise for children from newborn to ten
years of age. We design, contract to manufacture and sell high-quality, value priced apparel and accessories and other children’s-oriented merchandise under
two brands and store concepts—“The Children’s Place” and “Disney Store.” As of February 25, 2006, we operated 802 The Children’s Place stores in the
United States, Canada and Puerto Rico and 316 Disney Stores in the United States and Canada. In addition, we currently operate an Internet store at
www.childrensplace.com.
During fiscal 2005, as a result of the execution of our strategic initiatives, we achieved strong financial results. Net sales in fiscal 2005 increased $511.2
million, or 44%, to $1.669 billion, compared to net sales of $1.158 billion reported in fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2005, net sales from our The Children’s
Place business increased $176.9 million, an 18% increase over fiscal 2004. In addition, net sales from our Disney Store business increased $334.3 milion, a
205% increase over fiscal 2004, reflecting a full year of operations in fiscal 2005 versus 10 weeks of operations in fiscal 2004.

During fiscal 2005, The Children’s Place brand’s comparable store sales increased 9% compared to a 16% increase in fiscal 2004. Correspondingly, we
believe our market share in children’s apparel according to NPD increased to 4.2% in fiscal 2005 from 3.7% in fiscal 2004.

Net income in fiscal 2005 was $65.6 million, or $2.27 per diluted share, compared to net income of $42.8 million, or $1.55 per diluted share in fiscal
2004.

During fiscal 2005, our strategy was to build on our progress at The Children’s Place stores by continuing to focus on increasing store productivity and
elevating our brand awareness. We opened 55 The Children’s Place stores in fiscal 2005, and closed three.

The Disney Store business’ focus in fiscal 2005 was on improving gross margin through reduced product sourcing costs and better markdown control,
while providing our guest with improved merchandise quality at lower retail prices. Due to the long lead time of our merchandise purchases, we began to
impact our gross margin in the back-to-school season. During fiscal 2005, we opened 18 Disney Stores, remodeled 32 Disney Stores, and closed seven.
As of January 28, 2006, consolidated merchandise inventories at cost increased by $52.7 million, or approximately 33% (26% on a per square foot
basis) versus January 29, 2005. For The Children’s Place, inventory at cost increased 15% on a per square foot basis due primarily to the earlier flow of our
spring inventory. Disney Store inventory at cost was up approximately 57% on a per square foot basis, reflecting our depressed levels of inventory at the end
of fiscal 2004, our planned unit increase in support of our value pricing strategy and earlier future season flows.
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We expect The Children’s Place business to end the first quarter of fiscal 2006 with inventory per square foot up approximately 30% versus a 9% decline
last year, which reflects earlier summer and back-to-school flows; increased investment in summer merchandise; and increased levels of basic denim as we
cycle out of our existing program and prepare for a new denim assortment. At Disney Store, we expect to end the first quarter with inventory per square foot up
in the low 20 percent range, reflecting our increased investment in apparel merchandise and to support our value pricing strategy.

During the nine-week period ended April 1, 2006, we reported total sales of $287.3 million, a 10% increase compared to sales of $261.5 million during
the nine-week period ended April 2, 2005. Sales for the nine-week period included $217.9 million from The Children’s Place and $69.4 million from Disney
Store. Our consolidated comparable store sales increased by 4% during the nine weeks ended April 1, 2006. The Children’s Place business recorded a
comparable store sales increase of 3%, compared to a 15% increase in the corresponding nine-week period last year. For the nine-week period ended April 1,
2006, our Disney Store business recorded a comparable store sales increase of 6%. In February 2006, the Disney Stores entered our comparable store sales
base, therefore, a prior year comparable store sales figure is not available. We define comparable store sales as net sales from stores that have been open at least
14 months and have not been substantially remodeled during that time. Disney Stores’ comparable stores sales results may be more volatile than those of The
Children’s Place given one time events that occur from year to year such as major theatrical movie releases or DVD releases.

Retrospective Application of Construction Period Occupancy Costs

In October 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP)” FAS No. 13-1, “Accounting for Rental
Costs Incurred during a Construction Period” (“FSP FAS No. 13-1”). The FASB concluded that rental costs incurred during and after the construction period
are for the right to control the use of a leased asset and must be recognized as rental expense. These costs were previously capitalizable if a company had a

policy to do so. Our policy had been to capitalize occupancy costs incurred during construction and amortize these costs over the life of the lease.
Since we would have been required to expense construction period occupancy costs at the beginning of fiscal 2006, we have retrospectively applied FSP
FAS No. 13-1 to consistently charge occupancy costs incurred during construction as a period expense. The net effect of this application increases pre-opening
expense, which is included in our selling, general and administrative expenses, in the period we take possession of a new store, distribution center or office
facility. Since these costs are no longer capitalized, the retrospective application eliminated the related depreciation expense over the lease term.

In fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $3.6 million and $2.8 million, respectively. Depreciation
expense decreased by $2.8 million in fiscal 2004 and $2.4 million in fiscal 2003. Net income for fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 is now $42.8 million, or diluted
net income per share of $1.55, and $22.7 million, or diluted net income per share of $0.84, respectively. In addition to the changes in net income, adjusted net
property and equipment, total assets and total stockholders’ equity as of January 29, 2005 were $204.4 million, $616.2 million and $300.9 million,
respectively.
While the retrospective application did not change our total cash position, cash flow from operations decreased in the period that occupancy costs were
incurred during construction, partially offset by lower depreciation expense. In addition, cash flows used in investing activities were lower as a result of no
longer capitalizing occupancy costs during construction. For fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, cash flows provided by operating activities decreased by
approximately $3.7 million and $2.8 million, respectively. Cash flows used in investing activities decreased approximately $3.7 million and $2.8 million in
fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“US GAAP”)
requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from our estimates.
The accounting policies that we believe are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating reported financial results include the following:
Revenue Recognition —Sales are recognized upon purchase by customers at our retail stores or when received by the customer if the product was
purchased via the Internet, net of coupon redemptions and anticipated sales returns. Actual sales return rates have historically been within our expectations and
the allowance established. However, in the event that the actual rate of sales returns by customers increased significantly, our operational results could be
adversely affected. Our net sales include the 7% commission we receive from a subsidiary of The Walt Disney Company on the sale of Walt Disney
WorldÒ Resort and Disneyland Ò Resort tickets.

Our policy with respect to gift cards is to record revenue as gift cards are redeemed for merchandise. Prior to their redemption, unredeemed gift cards for
The Children’s Place business are recorded as a liability, included within accrued expenses and other current liabilities. During fiscal 2005, we recognized
$1.3 million as income from gift cards that are not expected to be redeemed based upon an extended period of dormancy. For the Disney Store, we act as an
agent on behalf of a subsidiary of The Walt Disney Company for gift cards sold to customers. Therefore, we do not record a customer gift card liability for the
Disney Store. However, we recognize a trade payable to Disney for the net purchase of Disney gift cards.

We offer a private label credit card to our The Children’s Place customers that provides a discount on future purchases once a minimum annual purchase
threshold has been exceeded. We estimate the future discounts to be provided based on prior year history, the number of customers who have earned or are
likely to earn the discount and current year sales trends on the private label credit card. We defer a proportionate amount of revenue from customers based on
an estimated value of future discounts. We recognize such deferred revenue as future discounts are taken on sales above the minimum. This is done by
utilizing estimates based upon sales trends and the number of customers who have earned the discount privilege. All deferred revenue is recognized by the end
of the fiscal year. Our private label customers must earn the discount privilege on an annual basis and this privilege expires at our fiscal year end.

Inventory Valuation—Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market, using the retail inventory method. Under the retail
inventory method, the valuation of inventories at cost and the resulting gross margins are calculated by applying a cost-to-retail ratio by merchandise
department to the retail value of inventories. At any one time, inventories include items that have been marked down to our best estimate of their fair market
value and an estimate of our inventory shrinkage.
We base our decision to mark down merchandise upon its current rate of sale, the season, and the age and sell-through of the item. To the extent that our
markdown estimates are not adequate, additional markdowns may have to be recorded, which could reduce our gross margins and operating results. Our
success is largely dependent upon our ability to gauge the fashion taste of our customers, including the popularity and relevancy of the Disney characters, and
to provide a well-balanced merchandise assortment that satisfies customer demand. Any inability to provide the proper quantity of appropriate merchandise in
a timely manner could increase future markdown rates.

We adjust our inventory balance based on an annual physical inventory and we estimate our shrinkage rate based on the historical results of our physical
inventories in consideration of current year facts and circumstances. To the extent our shrinkage estimate is not adequate, we would be required to reduce our
gross profits and operating results.
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Accounting for Royalties —In exchange for the right to use certain Disney intellectual property, we are required to pay a Disney subsidiary royalty
payments pursuant to a License and Conduct of Business Agreement (the “License Agreement”). Minimum royalty commitments are recorded on a straight-line
basis over the life of the initial 15 year term of the License Agreement. During each period, amounts due in excess of the minimum royalty commitment are

recorded as an expense if we expect to surpass the minimum royalty commitment on an annual basis, even if the contingency threshold has not been surpassed
in that particular period.
We were granted a royalty holiday for all stores until November 2006. In addition, depending on the specific store location, certain stores have an
extension of the royalty holiday for up to eight years from the date of the License Agreement. The actual value of the royalty holiday is not determinable until
the completion of the royalty holiday period, and may differ materially from our current estimate. Estimates for the royalty holiday are adjusted on a periodic
basis, and the cumulative adjustment is recorded in such period. The amortization of the estimated value of the royalty holiday is recognized on a straight-line
basis as a reduction of royalty expense over the term of the License Agreement. Royalty expense, and the associated amortization of the royalty holiday, is
recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses.
The royalty percentage does not increase over the term of the License Agreement. We expect to pay a 9% royalty on Internet sales, and in some instances,
10%. In fiscal 2006, we expect net royalty expense to approximate 4.3% of Disney Store net sales.

Insurance and Self-Insurance Liabilities —Based on our assessment of risk and cost efficiency, we self-insure and purchase insurance policies to
provide for workers’ compensation, general liability, and property losses, as well as director’s and officer’s liability, vehicle liability and employee medical
benefits. We estimate risks and record a liability based upon historical claim experience, insurance deductibles, severity factors and other actuarial
assumptions. While we believe that our risk assessments are appropriate, to the extent that future occurrences and claims differ from our historical experience,
additional charges for insurance may be recorded in future periods.
Accounting for Acquisitions —The acquisition of the DSNA Business was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, Business Combinations (“SFAS 141”). As such, we analyzed the fair value of identified
tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and determined the excess of fair value of net assets acquired over cost. This excess was
recorded as an extraordinary gain in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004.

Stock Options —Historically, we have not recorded compensation expense for stock-based compensation since we grant stock options at prices that equal
or exceed the fair market value of our common stock at the date of the grant. Beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2006, we will be required to recognize
compensation expense in an amount equal to the fair value of the stock-based compensation granted to employees, recognized ratably over the vesting period. In
fiscal 2005, to minimize the impact of past option grants on future operating results, we accelerated the vesting of approximately 2.1 million stock options and
recorded a share-based compensation charge of $2.1 million, which represented our estimate of intrinsic value that would have been forfeited had we not
accelerated option vesting. Reflecting prior option grants and expected fiscal 2006 equity grants, in fiscal 2006, we anticipate that shared-based compensation
expense will approximate $13 million, assuming 100% achievement of certain performance-based equity awards.

Impairment of Assets —We periodically evaluate each store’s performance and measure the carrying value of each location’s fixed assets, principally
leasehold improvements and fixtures, versus its projected cash flows. An impairment loss is recorded if the projected future cash flows are insufficient to
recapture the net book value of their assets. To the extent our estimates of future cash flows are incorrect, additional impairment charges may be recorded in
future periods.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected income statement data expressed as a percentage of net sales:
January 28,
2006

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Income before income taxes and extraordinary gain
Provision for income taxes
Income before extraordinary gain
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes
Net income
Number of stores, end of period

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29,
2005

January 31,
2004

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

60.4
39.6

61.0
39.0
28.8

59.8

30.3

3.1

4.2

6.2

6.0

2.4
3.8
0.1

2.3
3.7

3.9%
1,119

0.0

3.7%

1,056

40.2

29.9
5.8
4.5
1.7
2.8
—
2.8%
691

Year Ended January 28, 2006 Compared to Year Ended January 29, 2005
Net sales increased $511.2 million, or 44%, to $1.669 billion during fiscal 2005 from $1.158 billion during fiscal 2004. Sales for fiscal 2005 were
comprised of $1.171 billion from The Children’s Place business, an 18% increase over the $994.1 million reported in fiscal 2004 and $497.7 million in
sales from the Disney Store business, a 205% increase over the $163.4 million reported in fiscal 2004. Disney Store results in fiscal 2005 reflect a full year of
operation versus 10 weeks of operations in fiscal 2004. Our fiscal 2005 net sales increase resulted from $429.7 million in net sales from new stores and other
stores that did not qualify as comparable stores and $81.5 million in net sales from comparable stores. We define comparable store sales as net sales from
stores that have been open at least 14 full months and that have not been substantially remodeled during that time. Comparable store sales increased 9% as
compared to a 16% comparable store sales increase in fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2005, our comparable store sales increase was the result of a 6% increase in
our average dollar transaction size and a 3% increase in the number of comparable store sales transactions. Due to the acquisition of the DSNA Business in
fiscal 2004, the Disney Store business did not have any comparable stores in fiscal 2005. 260 Disney Stores entered our comparable store base in

February 2006.
During fiscal 2005, we achieved comparable store sales increases across all geographical regions, departments, and store types in The Children’s Place
business. Our West, Southwest, Southeast, and Canadian regions reported the strongest comparable store sales increases. By department, our comparable
store sales increases were in line with the chain average, except for our newborn department, which reported a low single-digit comparable store sales increase.

During fiscal 2005, we opened 55 The Children’s Place stores, 41 in the United States, 10 in Canada and four in Puerto Rico. We also opened 18
Disney Stores, 16 in the United States and two in Canada. We closed three The Children’s Place stores and seven Disney Stores in fiscal 2005.

Consolidated gross profit increased by $209.3 million to $661.2 million during fiscal 2005 from $451.9 million during fiscal 2004. As a percentage of
net sales, gross profit increased to 39.6% during fiscal 2005 from 39.0% during fiscal 2004. This increase in gross profit, as a percentage of net sales, was
comprised primarily of a higher merchandise margin of 1.2% of net sales and the impact of the sell through of acquired Disney Store inventory, which was
favorable to fiscal 2004 by 0.3% of net sales, partially offset by higher distribution and occupancy costs of 0.9% of net sales due to costs associated with our
new
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distribution center facility. During fiscal 2005, the sell through of acquired Disney Store inventory unfavorably impacted gross margin by $1.2 million, or
0.1% of net sales, as compared to an unfavorable impact of $5.0 million, or 0.4% of net sales during fiscal 2004. In accounting for the acquisition of the
DSNA Business, we were required to write-up acquired inventory to its fair value from the value determined under the retail inventory method. For The
Children’s Place business, our gross margin was higher in fiscal 2005 than in fiscal 2004 due to a higher initial markup, lower markdowns and the leveraging
of occupancy expenses, partially offset by higher distribution costs. While Disney Store continues to have a lower gross margin structure than The Children’s
Place business, it has benefited from improved markdown performance and the implementation of our low-cost sourcing strategies.
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $172.0 million to $505.7 million during fiscal 2005 from $333.7 million during 2004. As a
percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses increased 1.5% to 30.3% of net sales during fiscal 2005 from 28.8% of net sales during
fiscal 2004. This increase, as a percentage of net sales, was due primarily to Disney Store expenses that we did not have last year such as royalty expense,
which was $12.9 million higher than last year, and remodel expenses. In addition, higher repair, maintenance and utility expense, and higher payroll expense,
partially offset by favorable medical costs, contributed to the increase as a percentage of sales. In fiscal 2005, Disney royalty and remodel expenses represented
approximately 0.8% of net sales. During fiscal 2005, we remodeled 32 Disney Stores. During fiscal 2005, repair, maintenance and utility expenses were
approximately 0.6% higher as a percentage of net sales due to our continued focus on enhancing the store environment, and increased utility costs. During
fiscal 2005, store and administrative payroll was approximately 0.4% higher as a percentage of net sales, and medical costs were approximately 0.3% lower as
compared to fiscal 2004.

Depreciation and amortization amounted to $52.9 million or 3.1% of net sales, during fiscal 2005, as compared to $49.0 million, or 4.2% of net sales,
during fiscal 2004. Excluding the $1.7 million of depreciation expense associated with the Disney Store business, depreciation and amortization as a
percentage of The Children’s Place brand sales approximated 4.4% in fiscal 2005, which reflects higher fiscal 2005 infrastructure capital expenditures such as
our new distribution center and enterprise software platforms. Fiscal 2005 depreciation and amortization expense for the Disney Store business represents the
expense for assets put in service during the year as we remodeled and opened new stores. No depreciation expense was recorded on acquired property and
equipment since the fair value of net assets acquired exceeded the amounts paid for the DSNA Business.

Our income tax provision was $39.3 million during fiscal 2005 as compared to $26.6 million during fiscal 2004 due to our increased profitability. Our
effective tax rate was 38.1% during fiscal 2005 versus 38.5% in fiscal 2004. The improvement in the effective tax rate reflects tax efficiencies that were
identified in the course of our global operations review, partially offset by the $1.9 million expense associated with our approximately $45 million repatriation
under the American Jobs Creation Act.
During fiscal 2005, we recorded a $1.7 million extraordinary gain, net of taxes. This extraordinary gain represented the incremental gain required to be
recognized upon the finalization of purchase accounting for the DSNA Business. The extraordinary gain arose because the fair value of net assets acquired
was in excess of the amounts paid to acquire the DSNA Business.

Due to factors discussed above, net income for fiscal 2005 increased $22.8 million to $65.6 million from $42.8 million in fiscal 2004.

Year Ended January 29, 2005 Compared to Year Ended January 31, 2004
Net sales increased by $359.6 million, or 45%, to $1.158 billion during fiscal 2004 from $797.9 million during fiscal 2003. Net sales include $163.4
million from the ten weeks we operated the Disney Stores since their acquisition on November 21, 2004. Net sales from our The Children’s Place business
increased $196.2 million, or 25% during fiscal 2004. Comparable store sales increased 16% and contributed $116.8

27

million of our net sales increase during fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2004, our comparable store sales increase was the result of a 13% increase in the number of
comparable store sales transactions and a 2% increase in our average dollar transaction size. Comparable store sales increased 4% during fiscal 2003. Net sales
for our new stores as well as other stores that did not qualify as comparable stores increased our net sales by $79.4 million.

During fiscal 2004, we opened 62 The Children’s Place stores, 43 in the United States, 13 in Canada and six in Puerto Rico. In addition, we closed three
The Children’s Place stores and seven Disney Stores in fiscal 2004.
During fiscal 2004, we achieved double-digit comparable store sales increases across all geographical regions, departments and store types in The

During fiscal 2004, we achieved double-digit comparable store sales increases across all geographical regions, departments and store types in The
Children’s Place business. Our West and Southwest regions reported the strongest comparable store sales increases. By department, our accessories and boys
departments achieved the highest comparable store sales increases.

Gross profit increased $130.9 million to $451.9 million during fiscal 2004 from $321.0 million during fiscal 2003. As a percentage of net sales, gross
profit decreased to 39.0% during fiscal 2004 from 40.2% during fiscal 2003. The decrease in gross profit, as a percentage of net sales, was principally due to
lower merchandise margins and the impact of the fair value write-up of Disney Store inventory, partially offset by the leveraging of occupancy costs over a
larger sales base. For The Children’s Place business, as a percentage of net sales, our merchandise margins were 2.0% lower than last year due to a lower
initial markup partially offset by lower markdowns. Our Disney Store business merchandise margins are lower than The Children’s Place business; this
unfavorably impacted gross margin by 1.4%, as a percentage of net sales. Overall, the Disney Store business has a lower initial markup than The Children’s
Place business. As mentioned above, gross profit during fiscal 2004 was unfavorably impacted by a $5.0 million charge, or 0.4% of net sales, for the write-up
of the acquired Disney Store inventory sold during the ten weeks ended January 29, 2005 to its fair value from the value determined under the retail inventory
method. Approximately $1.2 million in fair value inventory write-up remained on our balance sheet as of January 29, 2005, which was charged to cost of
sales during the first quarter of fiscal 2005. The remaining unfavorable gross margin variance, as a percentage of net sales, resulted primarily from higher
distribution and buying expenses. During fiscal 2004, occupancy costs, as a percentage of net sales, decreased 3.0% as a result of our comparable store sales
increase and larger sales base.
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $95.1 million to $333.7 million during fiscal 2004 from $238.6 million during fiscal 2003.
Selling, general and administrative expenses were 28.8% of net sales during fiscal 2004 as compared to 29.9% of net sales during fiscal 2003. As a percentage
of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses decreased due to lower store payroll and the leveraging of store expense, partially offset by Disney
Store royalty expense and transition services associated with the acquisition of the Disney Stores. Due to our strong comparable store sales performance during
fiscal 2004, our store payroll expenses were 1.4% lower, as a percentage of net sales, than fiscal 2003. Disney Store royalty expense and transition costs
represented approximately 1.0% of net sales during fiscal 2004. The remainder of our favorable selling, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of
net sales, resulted primarily from the leveraging of store expenses.

Depreciation and amortization amounted to $49.0 million, or 4.2% of net sales, during fiscal 2004, as compared to $46.3 million, or 5.8% of net sales,
during fiscal 2003. The decrease in depreciation and amortization, as a percentage of net sales, is the result of the leveraging of the expense over a larger sales
base and the absence of depreciation and amortization for the DSNA Business. Excluding Disney Store sales, fiscal 2004 depreciation and amortization as a
percentage of sales approximates 4.9% versus 5.8% of sales in fiscal 2003. This improvement in percentage of net sales relates primarily to the 16% same
store sales improvement. Consistent with US GAAP, since the fair value of net assets acquired exceeded the
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amounts paid to acquire the DSNA Business, we recorded no basis in the property and equipment we acquired with the DSNA Business, and therefore no
depreciation expense was recorded.

Our provision for income taxes for fiscal 2004 was $26.6 million, as compared to a $13.6 million provision in fiscal 2003. The increase in our tax
provision was primarily due to our increased profitability in fiscal 2004, as well as an increase in our effective tax rate. Our effective tax rate was 38.5% in
fiscal 2004 compared to 37.5% in fiscal 2003. Our effective tax rate in fiscal 2003 was favorably impacted by the reversal of a $1.6 million valuation
allowance on a prior year loss incurred by our Canadian subsidiary.
During fiscal 2004, we recorded a $0.3 million extraordinary gain, net of taxes. This extraordinary gain represents the preliminary fair value of net assets
acquired in excess of amounts paid to acquire the DSNA Business.

Due to the factors discussed above, net income in fiscal 2004 increased $20.1 million to $42.8 million from $22.7 million in fiscal 2003.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Debt Service/Liquidity
Our working capital needs follow a seasonal pattern, peaking during the second and third quarters when inventory is purchased for the back-to-school
and holiday selling seasons. Our primary uses of cash are financing new store openings and providing for working capital, which principally represent the
purchase of inventory. We have been able to meet our cash needs principally by using cash on hand, cash flows from operations and seasonal borrowings
under our credit facilities.

We manage liquidity for The Children’s Place and Disney Stores separately, including cash receipts and disbursements, investments, and credit facility
borrowings and letter of credit activity. The terms of the License Agreement, the Hoop Loan Agreement (as defined below) and the Amended Loan Agreement (as
defined below), among other things, restrict the commingling of funds between The Children’s Place and the Hoop Operating Entities, and borrowings and
certain distributions from the Hoop Operating Entities to The Children’s Place. Therefore, we have maintained segregation of all cash receipts and
disbursements, investments, and credit facility borrowings and letter of credit activity. This segregation could lead to a liquidity need in one business while
there is adequate liquidity in the other business. We believe that cash flow from operations and availability and borrowings under their respective credit
facilities will be adequate to fund the growth needs and operations of each division. At this time, we do not foresee a need for The Children’s Place business to
provide additional capital to the Disney Store business for that business to meet its growth objectives or operating commitments, nor do we foresee a need for
the Disney Store business to make a distribution to its parent, other than normal payment of intercompany operating obligations, in order for The Children’s
Place business to meet its growth objectives or operating commitments.
We entered into a Guaranty and Commitment (the “Guaranty and Commitment”) dated as of November 21, 2004, in favor of the Hoop Operating Entities
and Disney. As required by the Guaranty and Commitment, we invested $50 million in the Hoop Operating Entities concurrently with the consummation of
the acquisition, and agreed to invest up to an additional $50 million to enable the Hoop Operating Entities to comply with their obligations under the License
Agreement and otherwise fund the operations of the Hoop Operating Entities. To date, we have not been required to invest any of this additional $50 million in
the Hoop Operating Entities in order to comply with the terms of the License Agreement. We also agreed to guarantee the payment and performance of the Hoop

Operating Entities (for their royalty payment and other obligations to Disney), subject to a maximum guaranty liability of $25 million, plus expenses.
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In connection with the acquisition of the DSNA Business, some of our subsidiaries and Disney’s subsidiaries entered into a License Agreement under
which the Hoop Operating Entities have the right to use certain Disney intellectual property in the DSNA Business in exchange for ongoing royalty payments.
The License Agreement limits the ability of the Hoop Operating Entities to make cash dividends or other distributions. The Hoop Operating Entitites’
independent directors must approve payment of any dividends or other distributions, other than payments of:

· amounts due under terms of the tax sharing and intercompany services agreements;
· approximately $61.9 million which represents a portion of the purchase price paid by the Company to Disney (limited to cumulative cash flows since
the date of the acquisition); and

· certain other dividend payments, subject to satisfaction of certain additional operating conditions and limited to 50% of cumulative cash flows up to
$90 million, and 90% of cumulative cash flows thereafter (provided that at least $90 million of cash and cash equivalents is maintained at the Hoop
Operating Entities).
In the normal course of business, the Hoop Operating Entities have reimbursed intercompany services but have not paid any dividends or made other
distributions. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we plan to evaluate the Hoop Operating Entities’ ability to reimburse the Company for all or a portion
of the $61.9 million described above. We do not expect the Hoop Operating Entities to pay dividends to the Company during the next 12 months. The Hoop
Operating Entities cash on hand and cash generated from operations will be utilized to finance store remodels and provide working capital. The License
Agreement also restricts the incurrence of indebtedness in excess of certain permitted amounts.
As of October 30, 2004, we amended and restated our credit facility (the “Amended Loan Agreement”) with Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC, (“Wells
Fargo”), partly in connection with our acquisition of the DSNA Business. The Amended Loan Agreement provides for borrowings up to $130 million
(including a sublimit for letters of credit of $100 million). The term of the facility ends on November 1, 2007 with successive one-year renewal options. The
amount that can be borrowed under the Amended Loan Agreement depends on our levels of inventory and accounts receivable relating to The Children’s Place
business.

The Amended Loan Agreement is secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all of our assets, other than assets in Canada and assets
owned by our subsidiaries that were formed in connection with the acquisition of the DSNA Business. Amounts outstanding under the Amended Loan
Agreement bear interest at a floating rate equal to the prime rate or, at our option, a LIBOR rate plus a pre-determined margin. The LIBOR margin is 1.50% to
3.00%, and the unused line fee under the Amended Loan Agreement is 0.38%. The Amended Loan Agreement also contains covenants, which include
limitations on our annual capital expenditures, maintenance of certain levels of excess collateral and a prohibition on the payment of dividends.
As of January 28, 2006, there were no borrowings under the Amended Loan Agreement as compared to $37.3 million in borrowings as of January 29,
2005. During fiscal 2005, our maximum borrowings under the Amended Loan Agreement were $58.2 million. Availability under the Amended Loan
Agreement as of January 28, 2006 was $74.1 million as compared to availability of $15.3 million as of January 29, 2005. Letters of credit outstanding under
the Amended Loan Agreement as of January 28, 2006 were $49.2 million as compared with $42.2 million as of January 29, 2005. The interest rates charged
under the Amended Loan Agreement were 7.25% and 5.25% per annum as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively.
As of November 21, 2004, the domestic Hoop Operating Entity entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the “Hoop Loan Agreement”) with certain
financial institutions and Wells Fargo, as
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administrative agent, establishing a senior secured credit facility for the Hoop Operating Entities. The Hoop Loan Agreement provides for borrowings up to
$100 million (including a sublimit for letters of credit of $90 million), subject to the amount of eligible inventory and accounts receivable of the domestic Hoop
Operating Entity. The term of the facility extends until November 21, 2007.

The Hoop Loan Agreement contains various covenants, including limitations on indebtedness, maintenance of certain levels of excess collateral and
restrictions on the payment of dividends and indebtedness. Credit extended under the Hoop Loan Agreement is secured by a first priority security interest in
substantially all the assets of Hoop USA and Hoop Canada as well as a pledge of a portion of the equity interests in Hoop Canada. Borrowings and letters of
credit under the Hoop Loan Agreement are used by Hoop USA and its subsidiary Hoop Canada for working capital purposes for the DSNA Business.
Amounts outstanding under the Hoop Loan Agreement bear interest at a floating rate equal to the prime rate plus a pre-determined margin or, at Hoop Operating
Entity’s option, the LIBOR rate plus a pre-determined margin. The prime rate margin is 0.25% and the LIBOR margin is 2.0% or 2.25%, depending on the
domestic Hoop Operating Entity’s level of excess availability.

As of January 28, 2006 and as of January 29, 2005, we had no borrowings under the Hoop Loan Agreement. Letters of credit outstanding were $25.8
million and $35.4 million as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively. Availability under the Hoop Loan Agreement was $16.3 million and
$4.4 million as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively. During fiscal 2005, there were no borrowings under the Hoop Loan Agreement other
than letters of credit that cleared after business hours. The average loan balance under the Hoop Loan Agreement during fiscal 2005 approximated $435,000.
The maximum overnight borrowings during fiscal 2005 were $4.8 million. The interest rate charged under the Hoop Loan Agreement was 7.50% and 5.50%
per annum as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively.
During fiscal 2006, we expect to have seasonal borrowings under the Amended Loan Agreement and the Hoop Loan Agreement. We expect to use both

credit facilities to support letters of credit throughout fiscal 2006.
We were in compliance with all of the covenants, as amended, under the Amended Loan Agreement and the Hoop Loan Agreement as of January 28,
2006. Noncompliance with these covenants could result in additional fees, affect our ability to borrow or require us to repay the outstanding balance.

Cash Flows/Capital Expenditures
Cash flows provided by operating activities were $115.9 million, $209.2 million, and $77.2 million in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003,
respectively. In fiscal 2005, cash flow from operations were driven by net income of $65.6 million. Significant non-cash expenses included $52.9 million of
depreciation and amortization expense and $20.0 million of net royalty expense. In fiscal 2005, we were in the royalty holiday period for our Disney Stores,
and therefore, all of the royalty expense was non-cash. The major operating asset that was used in operating activities was inventories, which accounted for
approximately $51.4 million. This increase in inventories primarily reflected the earlier flow of our spring inventory for both businesses, and for Disney
Stores, our planned unit increase in support of our value pricing strategy. Offsetting this use of cash flows in operating activities were a $38.7 million increase
in taxes payable resulting from our higher taxable income in fiscal 2005 and the timing of estimated tax payments, and a $24.1 million increase in deferred
rent liabilites primarily reflecting the growth in landlord incentives received for new stores opened at The Children’s Place. In fiscal 2004, cash flow from
operating activities increased primarily as a result of the cash conversion of acquired Disney Store net working capital, which was primarily inventory, and
increases in our current liabilities and operating earnings. In fiscal 2003, cash flow from operating activities was driven by the non-cash expenses such as
depreciation and amortization
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expense, and investments in inventory offset by increases in accrued expenses, interest and other current liabilities and deferred rent, which included landlord
incentives.

Cash flows used in investing activities were $89.0 million, $142.9 million, and $63.0 million in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively.
During fiscal 2005, capital expenditures increased $31.4 million due to our increased number of new stores and remodels; investments made for our new
distribution center in South Brunswick, New Jersey; upgrades in our other distribution centers to support the Disney Store acquisition; our new office facility
in Pasadena, California; and other information technology infrastructure investments required to operate our significantly larger business. During fiscal 2004,
cash flows used in investing activities increased primarily due to the acquisition of the DSNA Business for $107.3 million; capital expenditures related to
store openings and remodelings; and investments in our logistics and information technology infrastructure, partially offset by the net sale of $22.3 million of
auction rate securities. The number of new store openings and remodelings have a significant impact on our cash flows used in investing activities. In fiscal
2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, we opened 73, 62 and 53 stores, respectively while remodeling 38, 13 and 11 stores, respectively. During fiscal 2003, cash
flows used in investing activities also included a net $22.3 million investment in auction rate securities.
Cash flows (used in) provided by financing activities were $(21.3) million, $44.3 million, and $1.8 million in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003,
respectively. During fiscal 2005, cash flows used in financing activities represented the repayment of borrowings under our revolving credit facilities, which
reflects repayments of borrowings to fund the acquisition of the DSNA Business, offset by higher exercises of employee stock options and employee stock
purchases. During fiscal 2004, cash flows provided by financing activities reflected funds received from borrowings under our revolving credit facilities,
partly used to fund the acquisition of the DSNA Business, and funds received from the exercise of employee stock options and employee stock purchases.
During fiscal 2003, cash flows provided by financing activities reflected funds received from the exercise of employee stock options and employee stock
purchases.
We anticipate that total capital expenditures will approximate $146 million in fiscal 2006. We also anticipate receiving $26 million in lease incentives in
fiscal 2006. The capital expenditures will relate primarily to the opening of approximately 65 The Children’s Place stores and approximately 15 Disney
Stores, and the remodeling of approximately 20 The Children’s Place stores and 25 Disney Stores. During fiscal 2006, we also plan to expand our
administrative office facilities and make improvements to our distribution centers. We believe that cash on hand, cash generated from operations and funds
available under our credit facilities will be sufficient to fund our capital and other cash flow requirements for at least the next 12 months. Our ability to meet
our capital requirements will depend on our ability to generate cash flows from operations. In addition, we may consider additional sources of financing to
fund our long-term growth.
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
The following tables summarize our contractual and commercial obligations as of January 28, 2006 (in thousands):
Contractual Obligations
(dollars in thousands)

Operating leases
Employment contracts (1)
Minimum Disney Store royalty (unaudited) (2)
Long-term debt
Capital leases

Payments Due By Period
1 year or
less
2—3 years
4—5 years

Total

After 5
years

$1,012,595
4,071

$ 162,843
4,071

$295,150

$ 245,027

0

0

0

232,000

0
0
0

36,000

36,000

160,000

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
Total

$309,575

Amounts of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Other Commercial Commitments
(dollars in thousands)

Credit facilities
Purchase commitments (3)
Merchandise letters of credit
Standby letters of credit (4)

Total
Amounts
Committed

$

Amounts of Commitment Expiration Per Period

1 year or less

$

0

208,000

0

208,000

61,173

61,173
9,550

13,804

2—3 years
$
0
0
0

4—5 years

After 5 years

$0

$0

0
0
0

0
0
0

4,254

(1) Includes severance obligations due upon termination. Certain employment contracts also provide for continued medical coverage for a specified period.
The cost of these medical benefits was not estimated.
(2) While royalty payments will commence in November 2006 for certain stores, beginning in fiscal 2007, we are subject to minimum royalties. See Note 8
—Commitments and Contingencies for a description of the computation of the minimum royalty. The Company has estimated its fiscal 2007 minimum
royalty and used that figure to impute the minimum royalty due over the initial 15-year term of the License Agreement. This estimate does not include
future increases or decreases in Disney Store sales and cost of living adjustments since these are unknown contingencies. The actual minimum royalty
may differ materially from the amount currently estimated.
(3) Represents purchase orders for merchandise for re-sale of approximately $202 million and commitments to purchase capital equipment of approximately

$6 million.
(4) Represents letters of credit issued to landlords, banks, insurance companies and Disney subsidiaries. We do not expect a cash outlay for these stand-by

letters of credit during 2006.

As of January 28, 2006, under the License Agreement, as amended, we are committed to remodel by January 1, 2009 a minimum of approximately 160
of the 313 stores acquired as of the Closing Date, 32 of which were remodeled in fiscal 2005. This remodel commitment is subject to revision depending upon
what actions management takes regarding, among other things, the timing and nature of lease renewals for acquired stores. Due to the varying cost of each
remodel and additional changes to the prototype that are being considered by us, we are unable to reasonably quantify the total commitment amount or timing
of these remodels.

Quarterly Results and Seasonality
Our quarterly results of operations have fluctuated and are expected to continue to fluctuate materially depending on a variety of factors, including overall
economic conditions, the timing of new store openings and related pre-opening and other startup costs, net sales contributed by new stores, increases or
decreases in comparable store sales, weather conditions, shifts in timing of certain holidays, changes in our merchandise mix and pricing strategy.
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Our business is also subject to seasonal influences, with heavier concentrations of sales during the back-to-school and holiday seasons. Our first quarter
results are heavily dependent upon sales during the period leading up to the Easter holiday. Our third quarter results are heavily dependent upon back-to-school
sales at The Children’s Place and upon Halloween sales at Disney Store. Our fourth quarter results are heavily dependent upon sales during the holiday
season. As is the case with many retailers of apparel and related merchandise, we typically experience lower net sales and net income during the first two fiscal
quarters, and net sales and net income are lower during the second fiscal quarter than during the first fiscal quarter. We experienced losses in the second
quarter of 2005 and the second quarter of 2004 and expect to experience a second quarter loss in fiscal 2006. It is also possible we could experience losses in
other quarters. Because of these fluctuations in net sales and net income (loss), the results of operations of any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the
results that may be achieved for a full fiscal year or any future quarter.
The following table sets forth certain statement of operations data and selected operating data for each of our last eight fiscal quarters. The quarterly
statement of operations data and selected operating data set forth below, which reflects the retrospective application of construction period occupancy costs,
were derived from our unaudited consolidated financial statements and reflect, in our opinion, all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments) necessary to fairly present the results of operations for these fiscal quarters (in thousands, except per share data):
First

Net sales
Gross profit
Operating income (loss)
Net income (loss)
Basic net income (loss) per common share
Diluted net income (loss) per common share
Comparable store sales increase
Stores open at end of period

Quarter
(As adjusted)

$369,217
141,530
15,982
9,798
$
0.36
$
0.34

13%

1,059

First

Net sales
Gross profit
Operating income (loss)
Net income (loss)

Quarter
(As adjusted)

$225,779
94,183
18,643
11,387

Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006
Second
Third
Quarter
Quarter(1)
(As adjusted)
(As adjusted)

$ 318,750
99,075

(31,313)
(18,911)
$ (0.68)
$ (0.68)
4%

1,075

$ 441,051
185,168
42,436
28,993
$
1.05
$
1.01
6%
1,107

Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005
Second
Third
Quarter
Quarter
(As adjusted)
(As adjusted)

$189,165
60,739
(16,578)
(10,065)

$280,496
116,496
29,269
17,553

Fourth
Quarter

$539,718
235,466
75,565
45,695
$
1.64
$
1.57
11%
1,119
Fourth
Quarter(2)
(As adjusted)

$ 462,108
180,449
37,766
23,881

Basic net income (loss) per common share
Diluted net income (loss) per common share
Comparable store sales increase
Stores open at end of period

$
$

16%

(0.37)
(0.37)
10%

700

715

0.42
0.41

$
$

$
$

0.65
0.64
18%
734

$
$

0.88
0.85
17%
1,056

(1) Third quarter of fiscal 2005 includes an extraordinary gain net of taxes of $1.7 million, or $0.06 per share, resulting from the finalization of the fair
value of the DSNA Business acquired versus the amount we paid.
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(2) Fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 included 10 weeks of operations for the Disney Store business, commencing November 21, 2004. Fourth quarter also
included an extraordinary gain of $0.3 million, or $0.01 per share, after taxes, resulting from the difference between the fair value of the DSNA Business
acquired versus the amount we paid. The store count includes 306 Disney Stores acquired in the fourth quarter.

ITEM 7A. —QUANTITIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
In the normal course of business, the Company’s financial position and results of operations are routinely subject to market risk associated with interest
rate movements on borrowings and investments and currency rate movements on non-U.S. dollar denominated assets, liabilities and income. The Company
utilizes cash from operations and short-term borrowings to fund our working capital and investment needs.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments are normally invested in short-term financial instruments that will be used in operations within a year of the
balance sheet date. Because of the short-term nature of these investments, changes in interest rates would not materially affect the fair value of these financial
instruments.
The Company’s credit facilities with Wells Fargo provide a source of financing for its working capital requirements. The Company’s credit facilities bear
interest at either a floating rate equal to the prime rate or a floating rate equal to the prime rate plus a pre-determined spread. At the Company’s option, it could
also borrow at a LIBOR rate plus a pre-determined spread. As of January 28, 2006, the Company had no borrowings under the Amended Loan Agreement or
the Hoop Loan Agreement.

Assets and liabilities outside the United States are primarily located in Canada and Hong Kong. The Company’s investment in foreign subsidiaries with
a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar, are generally considered long-term. The Company does not generally hedge these net investments. As of
January 28, 2006, the Company is not a party to any derivative financial instruments.

As of January 28, 2006, the Company had approximately $56.4 million of its cash balance held in foreign countries, of which approximately $46.5
million was in Canada and approximately $2.2 million in Hong Kong. While the Company does not have substantial financial assets in China, it imports a
large percentage of its merchandise from that country. The Company believes that the 2005 revaluation of the Chinese Yuan should not have a material impact
on its fiscal 2006 financial results as purchase orders are negotiated in U.S. dollars. However, any significant or sudden change in China’s political, foreign
trade, financial, banking or currency policies and practices could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
In addition to the Company’s Asian operations, the Company has a growing business in Canada. While currency rates with the Canadian dollar have
moved in the Company’s favor, there can be no guarantee that this will continue or that the exchange rate will not move against the Company. Foreign currency
fluctuations could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operation.
The Company is sensitive to customers’ spending patterns which are subject to prevailing regional and national economic conditions such as consumer
confidence, recession, interest rates, energy prices, taxation, and unemployment to name a few. The Company is, and will continue to be, susceptible to
changes in weather conditions, national and regional economic conditions, raw material costs, demographic and population characteristics, hourly wage
legislation, consumer preferences and other regional factors.
As is the case with many retailers, the Company experiences seasonal fluctuations in net sales and net income. Net sales and net income are generally
weakest during the first two fiscal quarters, and are lower during the second fiscal quarter than during the first fiscal quarter. First quarter results at The
Children’s Place are heavily dependent upon sales leading up to the Easter holiday. Third quarter results are heavily
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dependent on back-to-school sales at The Children’s Place stores and the Disney Store is heavily dependent on Halloween sales. Fourth quarter results are
heavily dependent upon sales during the holiday season. Weak sales during any of these periods could have a material adverse effect on the Company.

The Company’s quarterly results of operations may also fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter as a result of a variety of other factors, including:

· weather conditions,
· overall macro-economic conditions,
· the timing of new store openings and related pre-opening and other start-up costs,
· net sales contributed by new stores,
· increases or decreases in comparable stores sales,

· shifts in the timing of certain holidays, and
· changes in our merchandise mix or pricing strategy.
Moreover, a significant portion of Disney Store net sales are generated during the third and fourth quarters of the fiscal year, which may, therefore, make
the seasonality of the total Company more heavily weighted to those quarters. Any failure to meet the Company’s business plans for, in particular, the third
and fourth quarter of any fiscal year would have a material adverse effect on earnings, which in all likelihood would not be offset by satisfactory results
achieved in other quarters of the same fiscal year. In addition, because the Company’s expense levels are based in part on expectations of future sales levels, a
shortfall in expected sales could result in a disproportionate decrease in net income.

Under the provisions of SFAS 123R, the Company will be required to record compensation costs for its various equity plans for employees and
directors. Under the measurement provisions of SFAS 123R, interest rates, the Company’s stock price and the volatility of the Company’s stock price each
have a significant impact on the determination of equity value; changes in these factors could have a material adverse impact on the determination of equity
compensation costs, and therefore, impact future results of operations. The Company’s risk mitigation for these factors is to limit or cease its equity
compensation plans, which the Company does not feel is reasonable given the competition for highly talented and qualified employees.

ITEM 8.—FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the consolidated financial statements and supplementary data listed in Item
15 of Part IV of this report.

ITEM 9.—CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
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ITEM 9A. —CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based on this review, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of January 28, 2006.
(b) Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Securities Exchange Act
Rule 13a-15(f). Our system of internal control is evaluated on a cost benefit basis and is designed to provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that reported
financial information is materially accurate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted
an evaluation of the design and effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (“COSO”). Based on this evaluation, we concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of January 28, 2006.
Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of January 28, 2006 was audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP,
an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which is included immediately following Item 9A(c) to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference to the 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders.
(c) Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s most recently completed
fiscal quarter to which this report relates that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

The Company’s management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal controls will prevent all error and fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable,
not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource
constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of
controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. :
We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting (Item

9A(b) above), that The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as
of January 28, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 28, 2006, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of January 28, 2006, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
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We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended January 28, 2006, of the Company and our report dated April 11, 2006 expressed an
unqualified opinion and included an explanatory paragraph referring to the Company’s early adoption in 2005 and retrospective application in 2004 and 2003
of FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. 13-1, “Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a Construction Period”, on those financial statements and the financial
statement schedule.
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
April 11, 2006
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ITEM 9B.—OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART III

ITEM 10.—DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Election of Directors” and “Compliance with
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934” in the 2006 Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. See also Item 1.

ITEM 11.—EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Information Regarding the Board of Directors
—Compensation of Directors” and “Executive Compensation” in the 2006 Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
ITEM 12.—SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” in the 2006 Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 13.—CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections entitled “Executive Compensation—Employment Agreements,”
and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in the 2006 Proxy Statement to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 14.—PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section entitled “Fees Paid to Accountants for Services Rendered During
the Last Fiscal Year” in the 2006 Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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PART IV

ITEM 15.—EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)(1) Financial Statements
The following documents are filed as part of this report:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005

45

Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscal years ended January 28, 2006, January 29, 2005 and
January 31, 2004

46

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the fiscal years ended January 28, 2006,
January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004

47

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended January 28, 2006, January 29, 2005 and
January 31, 2004

48

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

49
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FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED
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THE CHILDREN’S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

44

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005

45

Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscal years ended January 28, 2006, January 29, 2005 and
January 31, 2004

46

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the fiscal years ended January 28, 2006,
January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004

47

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended January 28, 2006, January 29, 2005 and
January 31, 2004

48
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc.:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
three fiscal years in the period ended January 28, 2006. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These
financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Children’s Place Retail
Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal
years in the period ended January 28, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion,
such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 4, in 2005 the Company early adopted FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. 13-1, “Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a
Construction Period,” and retrospectively applied this change to the 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial statements.
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 28, 2006, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated April 11, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
April 11, 2006
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THE CHILDREN’S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets
Property and equipment:
Leasehold improvements
Store fixtures and equipment
Capitalized software
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net
Deferred income taxes
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

January 28,

January 29,

$ 173,323
28,971
214,702
36,955
6,043
459,994

$ 165,196
23,987
161,969
37,223
3,784
392,159

2006

2005

259,788
218,254
186,683
151,738
34,948
25,018
20,809
13,002
502,228
408,012
(253,600) (203,569)
248,628
204,443
43,492
16,438
5,206
3,122
$ 757,320 $ 616,162

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:

$

Revolving loan
Accounts payable
Taxes payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Deferred rent liabilities
Deferred royalty
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 8)
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common stock, $0.10 par value
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income

0

37,268
78,106
16,135
214,949
90,641
7,097
2,568
315,255

2,796

2,722

83,440

0

0

134,372

111,373
4,938
181,874
300,907
$ 616,162

8,249
247,449
392,866
$ 757,320

Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$

82,826
49,078
94,160
226,064
105,560
27,152
5,678
364,454

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets.
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THE CHILDREN’S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

January 28,

Fiscal Year Ended

2006

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit

$1,668,736
1,007,496
661,240

January 29,

January 31,

$1,157,548
705,681
451,867

$797,938
476,961
320,977

2005

2004

505,684
52,886
102,670
(563)

333,718

49,049
69,100
22

238,638
46,251
36,088
(255)

Income before income taxes and extraordinary gain
Provision for income taxes

103,233

39,323

69,078
26,595

13,642

Income before extraordinary gain
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes

63,910
1,665

42,483
273

22,701
—
$ 22,701

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Operating income
Interest (income) expense, net

Net income

$

65,575

$

42,756

Basic net income per common share before extraordinary gain
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes
Basic net income per common share

$

2.31
0.06
2.37

$

1.58

$

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding

Diluted net income per common share before extraordinary gain
Extraordinary gain, net of taxes
Diluted net income per common share

Diluted weighted average common shares and common share equivalents
outstanding

$

2.21
0.06
2.27
28,877

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these consolidated statements of income.

$

0.01

$

27,676
$

36,343

1.59

$

26,919
$

1.54

26,646
$

0.84

$

0.84

—

0.01

$

1.55
27,633

0.85
—
0.85

27,099
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THE CHILDREN’S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands)

BALANCE, February 1, 2003
Exercise of stock options and
employee stock purchases
Tax benefit of stock option exercises
Change in cumulative translation
adjustment
Net income
Comprehensive income

BALANCE, January 31, 2004
Exercise of stock options and
employee stock purchases
Tax benefit of stock option exercises
Change in cumulative translation
adjustment
Net income
Comprehensive income

BALANCE, January 29, 2005
Exercise of stock options and
employee stock purchases
Tax benefit of stock option exercises
Compensation expense for
stock option acceleration
Change in cumulative translation
adjustment
Net income
Comprehensive income

BALANCE, January 28, 2006

Accumulated

Common Stock
Shares Amount

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

26,570 $ 2,657

$ 98,765 $ 116,417

Retained
Earnings

Other
Comprehensive
(Loss)/Income

$

Total
Stockholders’

Equity

274

$ 218,113

163

16

—

—

2,003
520

—
—

—
—

2,019
520

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
22,701

2,501
—

2,501
22,701

26,733

2,673

101,288

139,118

2,775

245,854

485
—

49

—

7,570
2,515

—
—

—
—

7,619
2,515

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
42,756

2,163
—

2,163
42,756

27,218

2,722

111,373

181,874

4,938

300,907

736

74

—

—

15,854
4,729

—
—

—
—

15,928
4,729

—

—

2,416

—

—

2,416

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
65,575

3,311
—

3,311
65,575

$ 134,372 $ 247,449

$ 8,249

$ 392,866

27,954 $ 2,796

Comprehensive
Income

$ 2,501
22,701
$ 25,202

$ 2,163
42,756
$ 44,919

$ 3,311
65,575
$68,886

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity.
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THE CHILDREN’S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
January 28,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred financing fee amortization
Amortization of lease buyouts
Loss on disposals of property and equipment
Asset impairment charges
Acceleration of stock option vesting
Deferred royalty, net
Extraordinary gain
Deferred taxes
Deferred rent expense and lease incentives
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

2006

$ 65,575
52,886
370

168
625
244

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29,
2005

$

January 31,
2004

42,756

$ 22,701

49,049
108
158
457

46,251

164
0

448

60
140
364

2,416
20,046
(2,774)
(30,276)
(9,167)

2,256
(7,930)

0
0
0
(6,461)
(6,420)

(5,065)
(51,401)
832

(6,552)
39,504
(3,689)

5,430
(19,880)
1,815

7,097
(444)

1,155
8,411
38,673
24,086

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses, interest and other current liabilities
Taxes payable
Deferred rent liabilities
Other liabilities

Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Property and equipment purchases, lease acquisition and software costs
Acquisition of Disney Stores, net of acquired cash
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Other investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings under revolving credit facilities
Repayments under revolving credit facilities
Exercise of stock options and employee stock purchases
Deferred financing costs
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

(908)
50,321
115,896

30,840
33,354
8,917
14,746
(1,552)
166,483
209,239

4,095
6,053
9,406
11,807
1,438
54,546
77,247

(89,229)
2,240
(52,515)
52,515
(2,030)
(89,019)

(57,804)
(107,256)
(43,930)
66,270
(157)
(142,877)

(40,681)

577,344
(614,612)

300,235
(262,967)
7,619
(626)
44,261

90,855
(90,855)
2,019

15,928
0
(21,340)

0

(31,590)
9,250
0
(63,021)

(175)

1,844

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

2,590
8,127
165,196
$ 173,323

2,141
112,764
52,432
$ 165,196

15,787
36,645
$ 52,432

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for income taxes

$

$

$

Cash paid during the year for interest

29,462
848

18,734

(283)

209

4,243
302

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
are an integral part of these consolidated statements of cash flows.
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THE CHILDREN’S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) is primarily a specialty retailer of merchandise for children from newborn to
ten years of age. The Company designs, contracts to manufacture and sells high-quality, value priced apparel and accessories and other children’s-oriented
merchandise under two brands and store concepts—“The Children’s Place” and “Disney Store.” As of January 28, 2006, the Company operated 802 The
Children’s Place stores in the United States, Canada and Puerto Rico and 317 Disney Stores in the United States and Canada. In addition, the Company
operated an Internet store at www.childrensplace.com. In addition to corporate offices and distribution facilities in the United States and Canada, the Company
also has business operations in Asia.

Fiscal Year
The Company’s fiscal year is a 52-week or 53-week period ending on the Saturday nearest to January 31. The results for fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and
fiscal 2003 represent the 52-week periods ended January 28, 2006, January 29, 2005 and January 31, 2004, respectively. The fiscal year ending February 3,
2007 will be a 53-week period.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and amounts of revenues and expenses reported during the period. Actual results could differ from the assumptions used and estimates made by
management, which could have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated. As of January 28, 2006, the Company does not have any investments in unconsolidated affiliates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments
Investments are classified in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” The Company did not have any investments at January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005.
Inventories

Inventories, which consist primarily of finished goods, are stated at the lower of average cost or market, calculated using the retail inventory method.
Under the retail inventory method, the valuation of inventories at cost and the resulting gross margins are calculated by applying a cost-to-retail ratio by
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merchandise department to the retail value of inventories. Inventory includes items that have been marked down to the Company’s best estimate of their fair
market value and an estimate for inventory shrinkage. The Company bases its decision to mark down merchandise upon its current rate of sale, the season
and the sell-through of the item. The Company adjusts its inventory based upon an annual physical inventory and shrinkage is estimated in interim periods
based upon the historical results of physical inventories in the context of current year facts and circumstances.

Insurance and Self-Insurance Reserves
The Company self-insures and purchases insurance policies to provide for workers’ compensation, general liability and property leases, as well as
director and officer’s liability, vehicle liability and employee medical benefits. The Company estimates risks and records a liability based on historical claim
experience, insurance deductibles, severity factors and other actuarial assumptions. As of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, the Company recorded
$5.9 million and $5.9 million in accrued expenses and other current liabilities for the current portions of employee medical benefits, workers compensation
and general liability reserves, and $5.3 million and $2.6 million for the long-term portion of employee medical benefits, workers’ compensation and general
liability reserves, respectively.
Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue, including shipping and handling fees billed to customers, upon purchase at the Company’s retail stores or when
received by the customer if the product was purchased via the Internet, net of coupon redemptions and anticipated sales returns.
An allowance for estimated sales returns is recorded and is reflected in accrued expenses and other current liabilities. The allowance for estimated sales
returns were approximately $1.8 million and $1.7 million as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively.

The Company acts as an agent on behalf of a subsidiary of The Walt Disney Company, for the sale of Walt Disney World® Resort and
Disneyland ® Resort tickets sold in the Disney Stores. The Company includes in net sales the 7% commission it receives for the sale of these theme park
tickets. During fiscal 2005, the Company recorded commission income of approximately $4.8 million. During the ten weeks the Company operated the
Disney Store business ended January 29, 2005, the Company recorded commission income of approximately $1.4 million. (For clarification, the “DSNA
Business” refers to the business the Company acquired from Disney as of November 21, 2004, whereas the “Disney Store business” refers to the Disney
Store business the Company has operated since the acquisition. See Note 2—Acquisition of the DSNA Business. The Walt Disney Company and/or its
subsidiaries are referred to interchangeably as “Disney.”)
The Company’s policy with respect to gift cards is to record revenue as the gift cards are redeemed for merchandise. For The Children’s Place, prior to
their redemption, gift cards are recorded as a liability, included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities. During fiscal 2005, the Company recognized
$1.3 million as income from gift cards that are not expected to be redeemed based upon an extended period of dormancy. Of the $1.3 million adjustment, the
Company estimates that approximately $1.0 million relates to fiscal 2004 and prior. The Company did not restate prior years’ financial statements since the
impact was immaterial. The Disney Store business acts as an agent on behalf of Disney for gift cards sold to customers. Therefore, the Company does not
record a customer gift card liability for the Disney Store business. However, the Company recognizes a trade payable to Disney for the net purchases and
redemptions of Disney gift cards.

The Company offers a private label credit card to its Children’s Place customers that provides a discount on future purchases once a minimum annual
purchase threshold has been exceeded. The Company estimates the future discounts to be provided based on prior year history, the number of
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customers who have earned or are likely to earn the discount and current year sales trends on the private label credit card. The Company defers a proportionate
amount of revenue from customers based on an estimated value of future discounts. The Company recognizes such deferred revenue as future discounts are
taken on sales above the annual minimum. This is done by utilizing estimates based upon sales trends and the number of customers who have earned the
discount privilege. All deferred revenue is recognized by the end of the fiscal year, as the Company’s private label customers must earn the discount privilege
on an annual basis, and such privilege expires at fiscal year end. As of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, all revenue deferred during the fiscal year
has been recognized.

Cost of Sales
In addition to the cost of inventory sold, the Company includes its letter of credit fees, buying, distribution and occupancy expenses in its cost of sales,
as well as shipping and handling costs on merchandise sold directly to customers.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost. Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight line basis over the life of the lease or the estimated useful
life of the asset, whichever is shorter. All other property and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis based upon their estimated useful lives, which
generally range from three to ten years.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company adjusted its financial statements to retrospectively apply Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) Staff Position (“FSP”) FAS No. 13-1, “Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred During a Construction Period” (“FSP FAS No. 13-1”), which requires
the recognition of rent expense for rental costs incurred during construction. Prior to FSP FAS No. 13-1, the Company had capitalized occupancy costs as a
part of leasehold improvements which were amortized over the life of the lease (See Note 4—Retrospective Application of Construction Period Occupancy
Costs.)
In accordance with AICPA Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use” (“SOP
98-1”), internal use software and other related costs are capitalized. The Company capitalized approximately $0.4 million, $0.5 million and $0.5 million in
programming and development costs of employees in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively. The Company also capitalized approximately
$9.6 million, $2.5 million and $1.3 million in external software costs in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively.

During fiscal 2005, the Company capitalized interest costs of approximately $0.3 million relating primarily to the construction of its new distribution
center facility. In fiscal 2004, the Company capitalized interest costs of approximately $0.1 million.

As of January 28, 2006, the Company had $8.0 million in property and equipment for which payment had not been made; these amounts are included
in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities.
During fiscal 2005, the Company recognized as income approximately $0.6 million of personal property tax liabilities that were determined to no longer
be required. The Company estimates that this amount relates to fiscal 2004 and prior. The Company did not restate prior years’ financial statements since the
impact was immaterial.

Deferred Financing Costs
The Company capitalizes costs directly associated with acquiring third-party financing. Deferred financing costs are included in other assets and are
amortized as interest expense over the term of the
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related indebtedness. As of January 28, 2006, deferred financing costs were approximately $0.5 million, net of accumulated amortization of approximately
$0.5 million. As of January 29, 2005 deferred financing costs were approximately $0.9 million, net of accumulated amortization of approximately $0.1
million.

Accounting for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144”), the Company evaluates each
store’s performance (in the fiscal year after a store has been opened) and measures the carrying value of each location’s non-salvageable fixed assets,
principally leasehold improvements and certain fixtures, versus its estimated future cash flows. When the evaluation of a store location indicates that the cash
flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying value of the long-term assets at the store, the store assets are deemed to be impaired and are adjusted to their fair
values.
During the last three fiscal years, certain stores experienced declining performance and management estimated that future cash flows were insufficient to
recover the carrying value of their assets. As a result, the Company impaired these assets by $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.4 million in fiscal 2005, fiscal
2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively. One store was deemed to be impaired in each of these fiscal years.

Pre-opening Costs

Store pre-opening costs, which consist primarily of occupancy costs, payroll, supply and marketing expenses, are expensed as incurred and are
included in selling, general and administrative expenses. Occupancy costs incurred during construction, prior to and during store pre-opening activities are
considered pre-opening costs, not rent expense. (See Note 4—Retrospective Application of Construction Period Occupancy Costs.)

Advertising and Marketing Costs
The Company expenses the cost of advertising when the advertising is first run or displayed. Included in selling, general and administrative expenses for
fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 are advertising and other marketing costs of approximately $46.4 million, $30.8 million and $21.8 million,
respectively.

Landlord Construction Allowances
The Company accounts for landlord construction allowances as lease incentives and records them as a component of deferred rent, which is amortized as
a reduction of rent expense over the lease term.

Rent Expense and Deferred Rent
Rent expense and lease incentives, including landlord construction allowances, are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term, commencing

generally on the date the Company takes possession of the leased property. The Company records rent expense and the impact of lease incentives as a
component of cost of sales. The unamortized portion of deferred rent is included in deferred rent liabilities.

Income Taxes
The Company computes income taxes using the liability method. This method requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities, measured by
enacted rates, attributable to temporary differences between financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities. Temporary differences result
primarily from accelerated depreciation and amortization for tax purposes and the non-deductibility of certain reserves and accruals in the current tax period.

During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. As a result,
the Company recognizes tax liabilities based on

52

estimates of whether additional taxes and interest will be due. These tax liabilities are recognized when, despite the Company’s belief that its tax return
positions are supportable, the Company believes that certain positions are likely to be challenged and may not be fully sustained upon review by tax
authorities. The Company believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open audit years based on its assessment of many factors including
past experience and interpretations of tax law. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of complex judgments about
future events. To the extent that the final tax outcome of these matters is different than the amounts recorded, such differences will impact the provision for
income taxes in the period in which such determination is made. As of January 28, 2006, the Company recorded $3.6 million in taxes payable related to
various tax contingencies.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Values of Financial Instruments” requires entities to disclose the fair value of financial instruments, both assets
and liabilities, recognized and not recognized in the balance sheets, for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. For purposes of this disclosure, the fair
value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. Fair value is based on quoted market prices for the same or similar financial instruments.
As cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable, and certain other short-term financial instruments are all short-term in nature, their
carrying amount approximates fair value.
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

In accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”) and the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, Transition and Disclosure” (“SFAS 148”), the Company accounts for its 1996 Stock Option Plan (the “1996
Plan”), its 1997 Stock Option Plan (the “1997 Plan”), its 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan”) (collectively, the “Plans”) and its Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) under the intrinsic value method described in the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and related accounting interpretations. Accordingly, since options were granted at prices that equaled or exceeded their
estimated fair market value at the date of grant, no compensation expense was recognized at the date of the grant.
On January, 27, 2006, the Company accelerated the vesting of approximately 2.1 million stock options, excluding approximately 348,000 options held
by non-executive members of the Board of Directors and certain executives of the Company, in order to eliminate approximately $20.9 million of share-based
compensation expense on future operating results for past option grants. As a result, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, in accordance with APB 25 the
Company recognized a share-based compensation charge of approximately $2.1 million, which represents the Company’s estimate of intrinsic value that
would have been forfeited had the acceleration not occurred. For option holders with 5,000 or more unvested options that were accelerated, the Company
imposed restrictions on their sale or transfer until the time the option would have vested under its original vesting schedule. However, these vesting restrictions
lapse upon the option holder’s disability, death or in the event of a change in control of the Company. Transfer restrictions will not apply after the original
vesting date for the accelerated options with respect to any shares acquired upon the exercise of accelerated options, whether or not the transfer restriction
agreement was signed.
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As required by SFAS 123 and SFAS 148, the Company has determined pro forma net income and earnings per share as if compensation costs had been
determined based on the fair value of options granted and recognized ratably over the vesting period. The fair value of issued stock options has been estimated
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, incorporating the following assumptions:
Dividend yield
Volatility factor
Weighted average risk-free interest
rate
Expected life of options (2)
Weighted average fair value on grant date

January 28, 2006
0%

44.9%
3.94%
5 years
$16.77 per share

January 29, 2005 (1)

0%

57.3%
3.59%
5 years
$ 14.18 per share

January 31, 2004
0%

63.0%
3.05%
5 years
$ 12.11 per share

(1) Commencing with options issued in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company used the average of the implied volatility from the Company’s

market-traded options and the historical volatility of its stock price to compute the volatility factor, which approximated 52% in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2004.
(2) Commencing in fiscal 2005, the expected option term was determined using Monte Carlo simulation for Black-Scholes based on historical employee
exercise behavior.

For fiscal 2005, no pro forma compensation expense was calculated for the Company’s ESPP because the ESPP purchase price was 95% of the fair
market value of the stock on the day of the ESPP purchase, which is deemed to be non-compensatory. For fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, pro forma
compensation expense for the Company’s ESPP was calculated by multiplying the number of shares issued by the spread between the fair market value of the
stock on the day of the ESPP purchase and the purchase price paid by employees, which was 85% of the fair market value. During fiscal 2004 and fiscal
2003 pro forma compensation expense for the ESPP was approximately $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively.
If compensation expense for the Company’s stock options and employee stock purchases issued in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 had been
determined based on the fair value method of accounting, in accordance with SFAS 123, and SFAS 148, the Company’s net income would have been reduced
to the pro forma amounts indicated below for the three fiscal years in the period ended January 28, 2006. The fiscal year ended January 28, 2006 pro forma
amount includes approximately $20.9 million in expense resulting from the acceleration of option vesting.
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The Company’s pro forma earnings per share are as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):
January 31,

$65,575

$42,756

$ 22,701

25,627
$ 39,948

6,054
$ 36,702

4,482
$ 18,219

$

$

$

2006

Net income As reported
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair
value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects
Pro forma
Earnings per share Basic—as reported

Basic—pro forma
Diluted—as reported
Diluted—pro forma

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29,

January 28,

2.37
1.44

2.27
1.39

2005

1.59
1.36
1.55
1.36

2004

0.85
0.68
0.84

0.68

Pro forma income per common share for the three fiscal years ended January 28, 2006 excludes the dilutive effect of stock options, which would have
been antidilutive as a result of the impact of unamortized stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value based methods. Fiscal year 2005 pro
forma expense reflects the impact of the January 27, 2006 stock option vesting acceleration.

The above pro forma results are not indicative of future results under the requirements of SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share Based Payments,”
(“SFAS 123(R)”).

Net Income per Common Share
The Company reports its earnings per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share” (“SFAS 128”), which requires the presentation of
both basic and diluted earnings per share on the statements of income.
In accordance with SFAS 128, the following table reconciles income and share amounts utilized to calculate basic and diluted net income per common
share (in thousands):
For the Fiscal Year Ended

January 28,

January 29,

January 31,

$65,575
27,676
1,201
28,877
57

$42,756
26,919

$ 22,701
26,646

2006

Net income
Basic weighted average common shares
Dilutive effect of stock options
Diluted weighted average common shares
Antidilutive options

2005

2004

714

453

27,633
829

27,099
845

Antidilutive options consist of the weighted average of stock options for the respective periods ended January 28, 2006, January 29, 2005 and
January 31, 2004 that had an exercise price greater than the average market price during the period. Such options are therefore excluded from the computation
of diluted shares.
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Accounting for Royalties Due Under the License Agreement
In fiscal 2004, the Company entered into a License and Conduct of Business Agreement (the “License Agreement”) to secure the right to use certain

Disney intellectual property in the Disney Store business in exchange for ongoing royalty payments. (See Note 3—License Agreement with Disney.)

Minimum royalty commitments are recorded on a straight-line basis over the life of the initial 15 year term of the License Agreement. During each period,
amounts due in excess of the minimum royalty commitment are recorded as an expense if management expects to surpass the minimum royalty commitment
on an annual basis, even if the contingency threshold has not been surpassed in that particular period. The royalty percentage does not increase over the initial
term of the License Agreement, except for royalties on Internet sales. The Company expects to pay a 9% royalty on Internet sales, and in some instances, 10%.

For all stores, the License Agreement provides a royalty holiday through October 2006. In addition, depending on the specific store location, certain stores
have an extension of the royalty holiday for up to eight years from the date of the License Agreement. The amortization of the royalty holiday is recognized on a
straight-line basis as a reduction of royalty expense over the term of the License Agreement. Royalty expense, and the associated amortization of the royalty
holiday, is recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses.

As of January 28, 2006, management’s estimate of the value of the earned net royalty holiday of $27.2 million has been recorded in deferred royalties.
The actual value of the royalty holiday is not determinable until the completion of the royalty holiday period, and may differ materially from the Company’s
current estimate. Estimates for the royalty holiday are adjusted on a periodic basis, and the cumulative adjustment is recorded in such period. Net royalty
expense of $20.1 million and $7.1 million has been included in selling, general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, respectively. The
Company’s classification of royalty expense in selling, general and administrative expenses may not be comparable to the classification of such costs at other
companies.

Derivative Instruments
SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (“SFAS 133”), as amended and interpreted, requires that each
derivative instrument (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) be recorded on the balance sheet as either an asset or liability and
measured at its fair value. The statement also requires that changes in the derivative’s fair value be recognized currently in earnings in either income from
continuing operations or accumulated other comprehensive income, depending on whether the derivative qualifies for hedge accounting treatment.

During fiscal 2005, the Company was not party to any derivative financial instruments. In the second quarter of 2004, the Company used foreign
currency forward contracts for the specific purpose of reducing the exposure to variability in forecasted cash flows associated primarily with inventory
purchases for the Company’s Canadian operations. These instruments were not designated as hedges and, in accordance with SFAS No. 133, the changes in
fair value were recorded in period earnings. As of January 29, 2005, the Company’s forward contracts had matured and a realized loss of $0.6 million and
was recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2004.

Foreign Currency Translation
The Company has determined that the local currencies of its Canadian and Asian subsidiaries are their functional currencies. In accordance with SFAS
No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation,” the assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
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exchange existing at period-end and revenues and expenses are translated at average monthly exchange rates. Related translation adjustments are reported as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements
SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)”) was issued on December 14, 2004 and becomes effective for the Company in
the first quarter of fiscal 2006. SFAS 123(R) requires an entity to recognize compensation in an amount equal to the fair value of share-based payments
granted to employees. The Company plans to apply the standard using the modified prospective method, which requires compensation cost to be recorded for
new and modified awards. Additionally, for any unvested portion of previously issued and outstanding awards, compensation cost is required to be recorded
based on the previously disclosed SFAS 123 methodology and amounts. Prior periods presented are not required to be restated.

Reflecting prior year option grants and expected fiscal 2006 equity grants, the Company expects the first quarter and full year fiscal 2006 stock-based
compensation cost to approximate $3 million and $13 million, respectively, assuming 100% achievement of certain performance-based equity awards.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB
Statement No. 3” (SFAS 154). SFAS 154 changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. Previously, most
voluntary changes in accounting principles required recognition through a cumulative adjustment within net income of the period of the change. The new
standard requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements, unless it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the
cumulative effect of the change. SFAS 154 does not change the transition provisions of any existing pronouncements. The Company does not believe that the
adoption of SFAS 154 will have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
In October 2005, the FASB concluded in FSP FAS No. 13-1 that rental costs incurred during and after a construction period are for the right to control
the use of a leased asset and must be recognized as rental expense. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company adopted FSP FAS No. 13-1 and
retrospectively applied its provisions. (See Note 4—Retrospective Application of Rental Costs Incurred During Construction.)
In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations” (“FIN 47”) which provides
clarification of SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” Under the majority of the Company’s operating leases, the Company is
required to “broom sweep” its premises upon lease termination, and therefore, no asset retirement obligations have been recorded. Certain operating leases
require the removal of certain reusable, longer-lived fixtures, which is not deemed to be an asset retirement obligation under FIN 47; therefore, no asset
retirement obligations have been recorded.

2.

ACQUISITION OF THE DSNA BUSINESS

On November 22, 2004, effective as of November 21, 2004 (the “Closing Date”), two of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries acquired two Disney
operating subsidiaries that were operating a total of 313 Disney Stores (the “DSNA Business”) consisting of all existing Disney Stores in the United States and
Canada, other than “flagship” stores and certain stores located at Disney theme parks and other Disney properties, along with certain other assets used in the
Disney Store business. All store leases and certain other legal obligations of the acquired entities remain the obligations of the acquired subsidiaries.
Subsequently, the Company’s subsidiaries acquired two Disney Store flagship stores, one in Chicago, Illinois and the other in San Francisco, California. The
Disney Store business’ results of operations subsequent to the Closing Date have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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The Company’s subsidiaries that operate the Disney Store business are referred to herein interchangeably and collectively as the “Hoop Operating Entities.”

The Company and one of its subsidiaries entered into a Guaranty and Commitment (the “Guaranty and Commitment”) dated as of November 21, 2004,
in favor of the Hoop Operating Entities and Disney. As required by the Guaranty and Commitment and the Acquisition Agreement, the Company invested
$50 million in the Hoop Operating Entities concurrently with the consummation of the acquisition, and agreed to invest up to an additional $50 million to
enable the Hoop Operating Entities to comply with their obligations under the license and conduct of business (“License Agreement”) (Note 3—License
Agreement with Disney), and otherwise fund the operations of the Hoop Operating Entities. To date, the Company has not been required to invest any of the
additional $50 million in the Hoop Operating Entities. The Company also agreed to guarantee the payment and performance of the Hoop Operating Entities (for
their royalty payment and other obligations to Disney), subject to a maximum guaranty liability of $25 million, plus expenses.

The DSNA Business was acquired for a total acquisition cost of $105.0 million, including transaction costs. During the third quarter of 2005, the
Company finalized the post-closing purchase price true-up and purchase accounting for the acquisition of the DSNA Business.
Purchase Price Allocation

This acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” (“SFAS
141”). As such, the Company analyzed the fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed, and determined the excess of fair
value of net assets acquired over cost. The Company’s purchase price allocation is as follows (in thousands):
Acquisition cost:
Acquisition payment, inclusive of the post-closing true-up
Transaction costs
Total acquisition cost

$ 98,611
6,405
105,016

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Property and equipment
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Leasehold interests and other long-term liabilities
Total fair value of net assets
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired over cost
Allocation of excess of fair value of net assets acquired over cost to long-lived assets
Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of DSNA Business
Extraordinary gain on the acquisition of DSNA Business, net of tax

104,212
29,520
48,293
(17,955)
(7,543)
156,527
51,511
48,293
$ 3,218
$ 1,938

As the fair value of the acquired assets and liabilities assumed exceeded the acquisition price, in accordance with SFAS 141, the valuation of the longlived assets acquired was reduced. Accordingly, no basis was assigned to property and equipment or any other long-lived assets and the remaining excess was
recorded as an extraordinary gain, net of taxes. Of the $1.9 million net extraordinary gain, approximately $0.3 million was recognized in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2004 based upon the Company’s preliminary purchase price allocation, and approximately $1.7 million was recognized in the third quarter of fiscal
2005 when the purchase price allocation was finalized subsequent to the post-closing true-up.
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Accrued expenses as of the Closing Date were approximately $0.8 million related to the estimated cost of exiting certain Disney Store facilities, stores and
operations. Through January 28, 2006, the Company has utilized $0.7 million of these exit activity reserves.

3.

LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH DISNEY

In connection with the acquisition of the DSNA Business, subsidiaries of the Company and Disney entered into a License Agreement under which the
Hoop Operating Entitites have the right to use certain Disney intellectual property, subject to Disney approval, in the Disney Store business in exchange for
ongoing royalty payments.
Pursuant to the terms of the License Agreement, the Hoop Operating Entities operate retail stores in North America using the “Disney Store” name and
contract to manufacture, source, offer and sell merchandise featuring Disney-branded characters, past, present and future. The initial term of the License

Agreement is 15 years and, if certain financial performance and other conditions are satisfied, the License Agreement may be extended at the Company’s
option for up to three additional ten-year terms. The Hoop Operating Entities will make royalty payments to Disney beginning in November 2006 equal to 5%
of net sales at physical Disney Store retail locations, subject to an additional royalty holiday with respect to a limited number of stores. Beginning in fiscal
2007, the License Agreement provides for a minimum royalty to be paid in each year. Beginning in April 2007, the Hoop Operating Entities will also operate the
www.disneystore.com Internet store which will feature a select assortment of merchandise offered in the physical retail locations. The Company expects to pay
a 9% royalty on Internet sales, and in some instances, 10%.

Beginning in fiscal 2007, u nder the License Agreement, the Hoop Operating Entities are also subject to minimum royalties. The minimum royalty
payment is computed as the greater of:

· 60% of the royalty that would have been payable under the terms of the License Agreement for acquired stores in the base year, which was the year
ended October 2, 2004, as if the License Agreement had been in effect in that year, increased at the rate of the Consumer Price Index, or

· 80% of the average of the royalty amount payable in the previous two years.
The License Agreement includes provisions regarding the manner in which the Hoop Operating Entities will operate the Disney Store business and
requires that approvals be obtained from a Disney affiliate for certain matters, including all uses of the intellectual property of Disney and its affiliates and the
opening or closing of Disney Stores beyond certain parameters set forth in the License Agreement. The License Agreement obligates the Hoop Operating Entities
to remodel stores as new long-term leases are executed.

The License Agreement limits the ability of the Hoop Operating Entities to make cash dividends or other distributions. The Hoop Operating Entities’
independent directors must approve payment of any dividends or other distributions, other than payments of:

· amounts due under the terms of the tax sharing and intercompany services agreements;
· approximately $61.9 million which represents a portion of the purchase price paid by the Company to Disney (limited to cumulative cash flows, as
defined, since the date of the acquisition); and

· certain other dividend payments, subject to satisfaction of certain additional operating conditions, and limited to 50% of cumulative cash flows up to
$90 million, and 90% of cumulative cash flows thereafter (provided that at least $90 million of cash and cash equivalents is maintained at the Hoop
Operating Entities).
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In the normal course of business, the Hoop Operating Entities have reimbursed the Company for intercompany services but have not paid any dividends or
made other distributions. The License Agreement also restricts the incurrence of indebtedness in excess of certain permitted amounts.
The License Agreement entitles Disney to designate a representative to attend meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company as an observer. Upon the
occurrence of certain specified events, including an uncured royalty breach and other repeated material breaches by the Hoop Operating Entities of the terms of
License Agreement, certain material breaches by the Company of the terms of the Guaranty and Commitment, and certain changes in ownership or control of
the Company or the Hoop Operating Entities, Disney will have the right to terminate the License Agreement, in which event Disney may require the Company
to sell the Disney Store business to Disney or one of its affiliates or to a third party at a price to be determined by appraisal or, in the absence of such sale, to
wind down the Disney Store business in an orderly manner.

In addition, as of January 28, 2006, under the License Agreement, as amended, the Company is committed to remodel by January 1, 2009 a minimum
of approximately 160 of the 313 stores acquired as of the Closing Date, 32 of which were remodeled in fiscal 2005. This remodel commitment is subject to
revision depending upon what actions management takes regarding, among other things, the timing and nature of lease renewals for acquired stores. Due to the
varying cost of each remodel and additional changes to the prototype that are being considered by the Company, the Company is unable to reasonably quantify
the total commitment amount or timing of these remodels.
During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, the Company recorded $20.1 million and $7.1 million, respectively, for royalty expense and had an accrued liability
of $27.2 million and $7.1 million on its balance sheet, respectively. However, due to the royalty holiday discussed above, there were no royalty amounts due
or paid under the License Agreement during fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004.

4.

RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION OF CONSTRUCTION PERIOD OCCUPANCY COSTS

In October 2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 13-1 which determined that rental costs incurred during the construction period are for the right to
control the use of a leased asset and must be recognized as rental expense. These costs were previously capitalizable if a company had a policy to do so.
Previously, the Company’s policy had been to capitalize occupancy costs incurred during construction and amortize those costs over the life of the lease.

The Company has retrospectively applied FSP FAS No. 13-1 to consistently charge occupancy costs incurred during construction as a period expense.
The Company would have been required to implement FSP FAS No. 13-1 at the beginning of fiscal 2006. The net effect of this application is to increase preopening expense, which is recorded in our selling, general and administrative expenses, when the Company takes possession of a new store, distribution center
or office facility to begin construction. Since these costs are no longer capitalized, the application also eliminated the related depreciation expense over the lease
term.
As a result of the retrospective application, operating income decreased $0.9 million and $0.3 million in fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively. In
fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $3.6 million and $2.8 million, respectively. Depreciation expense
decreased by $2.8 million in fiscal 2004 and $2.4 million in fiscal 2003. Net income for fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 is now $42.8 million, or diluted net
income per share of $1.55, and $22.7 million, or diluted net income per share of $0.84, respectively. In addition to the changes in net income, adjusted net
property and equipment, total assets and total stockholders’ equity as of January 29, 2005 were $204.4 million, $616.2 million, and $300.9 million,

respectively.
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While the retrospective application did not change our total cash position, cash flow from operations decreased in the period occupancy costs were
incurred during construction partially offset by the elimination of depreciation expense. In addition, cash flow used in investing activities were lower due to the
elimination of capitalization. For fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, cash flows provided by operating activities decreased by approximately $3.7 million and $2.8
million, respectively. Cash flows used in investing activities decreased approximately $3.7 million and $2.8 million in fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003,
respectively.

Impact of Retrospective Application
The following tables summarize the impact of the retrospective application on previously filed consolidated statements of income and balance sheet data
(in thousands, except per share amounts):
Consolidated Statement of Income
As reported
Adjustments
As adjusted
Fiscal year ended January 29, 2005 :

$ 330,080
51,835
69,952
69,930
26,923
$ 43,280
$
1.61
1.57

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Operating income
Income before income taxes and extraordinary gain
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Basic net income per common share
Diluted net income per common share

$

3,638
(2,786)
(852)
(852)
(328)
$
(524)
$
(0.02)
(0.02)

$ 333,718
49,049
69,100
69,078
26,595
$ 42,756
$
1.59
1.55

Consolidated Statement of Income
As reported
Adjustments
As adjusted

Fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 :

$235,863

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Operating income
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Basic net income per common share
Diluted net income per common share

48,700
36,414

36,669
13,764
$ 22,905
$
0.86
0.85

$ 2,775
(2,449)
(326)
(326)
(122)
$
(204)
$
(0.01)
(0.01)

$ 238,638
46,251
36,088
36,343

13,642
$ 22,701
$
0.85
0.84

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As reported
Adjustments
As adjusted

As of January 29, 2005 :

$222,722
627,388
4,935
192,633
315,725
311,663

Property and equipment, net
Total assets
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained earnings
Total liabilities
Total stockholders’ equity

$ (18,279)
(11,226)
3

(10,759)
(470)
(10,756)

$ 204,443
616,162
4,938
181,874
315,255
300,907
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The following table summarizes the impact of the retrospective application on previously filed consolidated cash flow data (in thousands):
Fiscal year ended January 29, 2005

Cash flows provided by operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activities
Fiscal year ended January 31, 2004

Cash flows provided by operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activities

5.

CREDIT FACILITIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
As reported
Adjustments
As adjusted

$ 212,947
(146,585)

$ (3,708)
3,708

As reported

Adjustments

$

80,039
(65,813)

$ (2,792)
2,792

$ 209,239
(142,877)
As adjusted

$

77,247
(63,021)

Amended Loan Agreement
As of October 30, 2004, the Company amended and restated its credit facility (“the Amended Loan Agreement”), with Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC,
(“Wells Fargo”), as syndicated agent, and certain other lenders, partly in connection with its acquisition of the Disney Store retail chain. The Amended Loan
Agreement provides for borrowings up to $130 million (including a sublimit for letters of credit of $100 million). The term of the facility ends on November 1,
2007 with successive one-year renewal options. The amount that could be borrowed under the credit facility depends on the Company’s level of inventory and
accounts receivable.

The Amended Loan Agreement is secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, other
than assets in Canada and assets owned by the Company’s subsidiaries that were formed in connection with the acquisition of the DSNA Business. Amounts
outstanding under the Amended Loan Agreement bear interest at a floating rate equal to the prime rate or, at the Company’s option, a LIBOR rate plus a predetermined margin. The LIBOR margin is 1.50% to 3.00%. The unused line fee under the Amended Loan Agreement is 0.38%.

Under the Amended Loan Agreement, the Company had no borrowings outstanding as of January 28, 2006 and had $37.3 million in outstanding
borrowings as of January 29, 2005. Letters of credit outstanding as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005 were $49.2 million and $42.2 million,
respectively. Availability as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005 was $74.1 million and $15.3 million, respectively. The interest rate charged under the
Amended Loan Agreement was 7.25% and 5.25% as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively.
The Amended Loan Agreement also contains covenants, which include limitations on the Company’s annual capital expenditures, the maintenance of
certain levels of excess collateral, and a prohibition on the payment of dividends. Noncompliance with these covenants could result in additional fees, could
affect the Company’s ability to borrow or could require the Company to repay the outstanding balance. As of January 28, 2006, the Company was in
compliance with all of its covenants under the Amended Loan Agreement, as amended. (See Note 17—Subsequent Events.)
Borrowing activity under this agreement was as follows (in thousands, except percentages):
For the Fiscal Year Ended

January 28,

January 29,

$ 18,906
6.49%
$58,157

$ 6,023
5.13%
$ 53,832

2006

Average balance outstanding
Weighted average interest rate
Maximum balance outstanding

2005
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Hoop Loan Agreement
As of November 21, 2004, the domestic Hoop Operating Entity entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the “Hoop Loan Agreement”) dated as of
November 21, 2004 with certain financial institutions and Wells Fargo, as administrative agent, establishing a senior secured credit facility for the Hoop
Operating Entities. The Hoop Loan Agreement provides for borrowings up to $100 million (including a sublimit for letters of credit of $90 million). The term
of the facility extends until November 21, 2007. The amount that could be borrowed under the Hoop Loan Agreement depends on the domestic Hoop Operating
Entity’s level of inventory and accounts receivable.

The Hoop Loan Agreement is secured by a first priority security interest in substantially all the assets of the Hoop Operating Entities as well as a pledge
of a portion of the equity interests in the Canada Hoop Operating Entity. Borrowings and letters of credit under the Hoop Loan Agreement are used by the Hoop
Operating Entities for working capital purposes for the Disney Store business. Amounts outstanding under the Hoop Loan Agreement bear interest at a floating
rate equal to the prime rate plus a pre-determined margin or, at the Hoop Operating Entities’ option, the LIBOR rate plus a pre-determined margin. The prime
rate margin is 0.25% and the LIBOR margin is 2.0% or 2.25%, depending on the United States Hoop Operating Entity’s level of excess availability. The
unused line fee is 0.30%.

There were no borrowings under the Hoop Loan Agreement as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005, respectively. During fiscal 2005, there were
no borrowings under the Hoop Loan Agreement other than letters of credit that cleared after business hours. Letters of credit outstanding as of January 28,
2006 and January 29, 2005 were $25.8 million and $35.4 million, respectively. Availability as of January 28, 2006 and January 29, 2005 was $16.3
million and $4.4 million, respectively. The interest rate charged under the Hoop Loan Agreement was 7.50% and 5.50% as of January 28, 2006 and
January 29, 2005, respectively.
The Hoop Loan Agreement contains various covenants, including limitations on indebtedness, maintenance of certain levels of excess collateral and
restrictions on the payment of intercompany dividends and indebtedness. Non-compliance with these covenants could result in additional fees, could affect
the Hoop Operating Entity’s ability to borrow or could require the Hoop Operating Entity to repay the outstanding balance. As of January 28, 2006, the Hoop
Operating Entity was in compliance with all of its covenants under the Hoop Loan Agreement, as amended. (See Note 17—Subsequent Events.)
Borrowing activity under the Hoop Loan Agreement was as follows (in thousands, except percentages):
For the Fiscal Year Ended

January 28,
2006

Average balance outstanding
Weighted average interest rate
Maximum balance outstanding

$

435

6.91%
$ 4,848

January 29,
2005

$ 1,180
5.13%
$ 40,250

Toronto Dominion Credit Facility

The Company had a credit facility with Toronto Dominion Bank (the “Toronto Dominion Credit Facility”) to support the Canadian subsidiary which

operates The Children’s Place stores in Canada. The Toronto Dominion Credit Facility expired in fiscal 2005 and the Company does not plan to replace the
facility. The Company did not borrow under the Toronto Dominion Credit Facility in fiscal 2005 or fiscal 2004.
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Letter of Credit Fees
Letter of credit fees approximated $0.9 million, $0.5 million and $0.5 million in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively. Letter of credit
fees are included in cost of goods sold.

6.

PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid expenses and other current assets are comprised of the following (in thousands, except percentages):
January 28,

January 29,

$ 22,242
8,744
918
495
1,872
2,684
$36,955

$19,868
11,041
1,441
674
1,671
2,528
$ 37,223

2006

Prepaid property expense
Disney dollars and theme park tickets
Prepaid insurance
Prepaid supplies
Prepaid maintenance contracts
Other prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

2005

Disney dollars are a form of corporate scrip purchased by the Hoop Operating Entities and sold in the Disney Stores. The scrip is considered legal tender
in the Disney theme parks and Disney Stores. Disney theme park tickets are also purchased by the Hoop Operating Entities and sold in the Disney Stores.

7.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands):
January 28,

January 29,

$ 23,734
7,362
13,154

$21,366
7,599
10,824
10,493
9,601

2006

Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued real estate expenses
Customer liabilities
Accrued professional fees
Accrued store expenses
Sales taxes and other taxes payable
Accrued marketing
Accrued construction-in-progress
Accrued freight
Accrued insurance
Other accrued expenses
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

8.

3,431

7,435
10,611
5,555
6,983
4,029
2,662
9,204
$94,160

2005

8,040

3,894
57
346
2,234
8,986

$ 83,440

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases all of its stores, offices and distribution facilities, and certain office equipment, store fixtures and automobiles, under operating
leases expiring through 2023. Certain leases include options to renew and certain leases require additional rent once a sales threshold is reached. The leases
require fixed minimum annual rental payments plus, under the terms of certain leases, additional payments for taxes, other expenses and additional rent based
upon sales.
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Store, office and distribution facilities minimum rent, contingent rent and sublease income are as follows (in thousands):
For the Fiscal Year Ended

Minimum rentals
Additional rent based upon sales
Sublease income

January 28,

January 29,

January 31,

$157,533
906

$ 108,547
551

$ 91,547

2006

(543)

2005

(180)

2004

200
0

Future minimum annual lease payments under the Company’s operating leases at January 28, 2006, are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Operating
Leases

Fiscal year

$ 163,533
154,831
141,784
131,495
113,947
307,845
$ 1,013,435

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
Thereafter
Total minimum lease payments

As of January 28, 2006, the Company has entered into various purchase commitments for merchandise for re-sale and capital equipment that
approximate $202 million and $6 million, respectively.
The Company’s acquisition of the DSNA Business was structured to create the Hoop Operating Entities as separate legal entities to fund and operate the
Disney Store business. The domestic Hoop Operating Entity was capitalized with $50 million on the Closing Date. In addition, the Company has agreed to
invest up to an additional $50 million to enable the Hoop Operating Entities to comply with their respective obligations under the License Agreement and
otherwise to fund their operations. The Company also guaranteed royalty payments and other obligations under the License Agreement up to a maximum of
$25 million, plus expenses.

Beginning in fiscal 2007, u nder the License Agreement, the Hoop Operating Entities are also subject to minimum royalties. The minimum royalty
payment is computed as the greater of:

· 60% of the royalty that would have been payable under the terms of the License Agreement for acquired stores in the base year, which was the year
ended October 2, 2004, as if the License Agreement had been in effect in that year, increased at the rate of the Consumer Price Index, or

· 80% of the average of the royalty amount payable in the previous two years.
During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, since the Company was in the royalty holiday period, no minimum royalty was due under the License Agreement.
(See Note 3—License Agreement with Disney.) The Company estimates that the minimum royalty will approximate $232 million (unaudited) over the initial
15-year term of the License Agreement. This estimate does not include future increases or decreases in Disney Store sales and cost of living adjustments since
these are unknown contingencies. The actual minimum royalty may differ materially from the amount currently estimated.

In addition, as of January 28, 2006, under the License Agreement, as amended, the Company is committed to remodel by January 1, 2009 a minimum
of approximately 160 of the 313 stores acquired as of the Closing Date, 32 of which were remodeled in fiscal 2005. This remodel commitment is subject to
revision depending upon what actions management takes regarding, among other things, the timing and
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nature of lease renewals for acquired stores. Due to the varying cost of each remodel and additional changes to the prototype that are being considered by the
Company, the Company is unable to reasonably quantify the total commitment amount or timing of these remodels.

9.

LITIGATION

The Company reserves for litigation settlements when it can determine the probability of outcome and can estimate costs. Estimates are adjusted as facts
and circumstances require. The Company is involved in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of its business. In the opinion of management,
any ultimate liability arising out of such proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

10. INCOME TAXES
Components of the Company’s provision for income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):
January 28,

Current Federal
Foreign
State

Total current
Deferred Federal
Foreign
State
Change in valuation allowance
Total deferred
Total provision for income taxes
Taxes on the extraordinary gain

Tax provision as shown on the consolidated
statements of income

2006

$ 45,598
15,178
9,932
70,708
(23,144)

(1,858)
(5,274)
0

(30,276)
40,432

(1,109)
$ 39,323

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29,

January 31,

$ 17,658

$15,036
1,418
3,649

2005

3,423

3,429
24,510
549
757
950
0

2,256
26,766
(171)
$26,595

2004

20,103

(4,939)
0

67
(1,589)
(6,461)
13,642
0

$ 13,642

Effective tax rate

38.5%

38.1%

37.5%
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A reconciliation between the calculated tax provision on income based on the statutory rates in effect and the effective tax rate follows (in thousands):
January 28,
2006

Calculated income tax provision at Federal statutory
rate
State income taxes, net of Federal benefit
Foreign tax rate differential
Losses for which no tax benefit is recognized
American Jobs Creation Act repatriation
Nondeductible expenses
Other
Total tax provision
Taxes on the extraordinary gain
Tax provision as shown on the consolidated statements
of income

$ 37,102
3,076
(4,198)

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29,

January 31,

$ 24,333
2,864
(369)

$ 12,720
2,785

2005

0

0
0
34

1,856
317

2,279
40,432

(1,109)
$ 39,323

(96)
26,766
(171)
$26,595

2004

(318)
(1,589)
0

22
22
13,642
0

$ 13,642

In October 2004, President Bush signed the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”). The Act creates a temporary incentive for the Company to
repatriate earnings accumulated outside the U.S. by allowing the Company to reduce its taxable income by 85% of certain eligible dividends received from
non-U.S. subsidiaries by the end of 2005. In order to benefit from this incentive, the Company must reinvest the qualifying dividends in the U.S. under a
domestic reinvestment plan approved by the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Board of Directors.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company’s CEO and Board of Directors approved a domestic reinvestment plan to repatriate approximately $45
million under the Act. These foreign earnings were previously considered to be indefinitely reinvested outside the United States. Accordingly, in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company recorded income tax expense of approximately $1.9 million associated with this repatriation of earnings.

As of January 28, 2006, the Company has not provided Federal tax on approximately $21.1 million of unremitted earnings of its international
subsidiaries. These earnings are currently expected to be reinvested overseas to fund expansion in Asia and other foreign markets. Accordingly, the Company
has not provided any provision for income tax expenses in excess of foreign jurisdiction income tax requirements relative to such unremitted earnings in the
accompanying financial statements.
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Temporary differences which give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands):
January 28,

Current Uniform inventory capitalization
Inventory related allowances
Prepaid expenses and other reserves
Total current
Noncurrent Depreciation and other
Deferred rent
Deferred royalty
Total noncurrent
Total deferred tax asset

January 29,

2006

2005

$ 4,717
1,240
86
6,043

$ 3,106
2,188
(1,510)
3,784

20,576
12,065
10,851
43,492
$49,535

8,072
8,366
0

16,438
$ 20,222

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax
assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
those temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the projections for future taxable income over the periods which the deferred tax assets are
deductible as of January 28, 2006, management believes it is more likely than not the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible differences.

11. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
The Company’s stockholders’ equity is comprised of the following:

January 28,

January 29,

2006

Common stock:
Authorized number of shares, $0.10 par value
Issued and outstanding number of shares
Preferred stock:
Authorized number of shares, $1.00 par value
Issued and outstanding number of shares

2005

100,000,000

100,000,000

27,954,386

27,218,395

1,000,000

1,000,000

0

0

12. STOCK OPTION AND PURCHASE PLANS
Stock Option Plans

The Company has awarded stock options under three plans: the 1996 Plan, the 1997 Plan, and the 2005 Plan. The 1996 Plan authorized the granting
of stock options with respect to 1,743,240 shares of common stock. The 1997 Plan, as amended, authorized the granting of stock options with respect to
6,500,000 shares of common stock. The 2005 Plan authorized the issuance of equity with respect to 2,000,000 shares of common stock. In conjunction with
the approval of the 2005 Plan, the Company will not issue any additional options under the 1996 Plan and the 1997 Plan. As of January 28, 2006, there
were 1,935,900 shares available for grant under the 2005 Plan.
The Stock Option Plans are administered by the Compensation Committee (“Compensation Committee”), a committee of independent members of the
Board of Directors. Options granted under the
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Plans have exercise prices established by the Compensation Committee provided that the exercise price of incentive stock options may not be less than the fair
market value of the underlying shares at the date of grant. The Plans also contain certain provisions that require the exercise price of incentive stock options
granted to stockholders owning greater than 10% of the Company be at least 110% of the fair market value of the underlying shares. The maximum term of
options granted is ten years. Unless otherwise specified by the Board of Directors, options granted under the 1996 Plan and the 1997 Plan vest at 20% a year
over a five-year period and options granted under the 2005 Plan vest 25% a year over a four-year period.

On January 27, 2006, the Company accelerated the vesting of approximately 2.1 million stock options, excluding approximately 348,000 options held by
non-executive members of the Board of Directors and certain executives of the Company. For option holders with 5,000 or more unvested options that were
accelerated, the Company imposed restrictions on their sale or transfer until the time the option would have vested under its original vesting schedule.
However, these vesting restrictions lapse upon the option holder’s disability, death or in the event of a change in control of the Company. Transfer restrictions
will not apply after the original vesting date for the accelerated options with respect to any shares acquired upon the exercise of accelerated options, whether or
not the transfer restriction agreement was signed. During the nine-week period ended April 1, 2006, option holders exercised approximately 413,000 options.

Changes in common shares under equity plans for the three fiscal years in the period ended January 28, 2006 are summarized below:
January 28, 2006
Weighted Average

Beginning of year
Granted
Exercised
Canceled
End of year

January 31, 2004

Exercise Price

Shares

Exercise Price

Shares

3,225,685
1,182,900

$ 22.67

3,013,985
881,725
(460,235)

$ 20.16

2,085,265
1,183,500
(135,230)
(119,550)
3,013,985
1,150,124

(716,940)

Exercisable at end of year

January 29, 2005
Weighted Average

Shares

(197,584)
3,494,061
3,101,058

39.27
21.10
25.93
$ 28.34
$ 27.95

(209,790)

3,225,685
1,104,899

27.64
15.31
29.81
$ 22.67
$ 18.91

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

$ 18.59
22.13

11.78
21.65

$ 20.16
$ 17.45

The following table summarizes information regarding options outstanding at January 28, 2006:

Exercise Prices

$2.68
$8.70—$12.88
$13.97—$20.55
$21.20—$31.63
$32.80—$49.17
$49.41
$2.68—$49.41

Outstanding at
January 28, 2006

69,952
295,242
523,463
1,251,099
1,313,805
40,500
3,494,061

Options Outstanding
Weighted Average Remaining
Contractual Life

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

0.4
6.4

$ 2.68
11.08

5.4

17.97
26.76

7.7

8.9
9.8

38.56

7.6

$ 28.34

49.41

Options Exercisable
Exercisable at
Weighted Average
January 28, 2006
Exercise Price

69,952
295,242
505,463
1,021,096
1,168,805
40,500
3,101,058

$ 2.68
11.08
17.90
26.61
38.49
49.41
$ 27.95

Stock Purchase Plans
The Company’s ESPP is authorized to issue up to 360,000 shares of common stock for employee purchase through payroll deductions. During fiscal
2005, employees purchased stock at 95% of fair market value, and during fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 at 85% of fair market value. As of January 28, 2006,
there were 186,437 shares available for grant under the ESPP. All employees of the Company who have completed at least 90 days of employment and attained
21 years of age are eligible to participate, except for employees who own common stock or options on such common stock which represents 5% or more of
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the Company’s outstanding common stock. During fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, there were 19,051 shares, 24,847 shares, and 28,219 shares
issued under the ESPP, respectively.

13. SAVINGS AND INVESTMENT PLAN
The Company has adopted The Children’s Place 401(k) Savings and Investment Plan (the “401(k) Plan”), which qualifies under Section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The 401(k) Plan is a defined contribution plan established to provide retirement benefits for all employees who
have completed 90 days of service with the Company.
The 401(k) Plan is employee funded up to an elective annual deferral and also provides an option for the Company to contribute to the 401(k) Plan at the
discretion of the 401(k) Plan’s trustees. During fiscal 2005, the Company made a qualified non-elective contribution (“QNEC”) that provided for a higher
Company match for certain associates to enable the Company’s 401(k) Plan to pass certain Internal Revenue Service tests. Other than the QNEC, the
Company matched the lesser of 50% of the participant’s contribution or 2.5% of the participant’s covered compensation during fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and
fiscal 2003. During fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, the Company’s matching contributions to the 401(k) Plan were approximately $1.9 million, $0.9
million and $0.9 million, respectively.

During fiscal 2005, the Company modified its 401(k) Plan design regarding its future Company match contributions for certain non-highly compensated
associates. Commencing in fiscal 2006 for certain non-highly compensated associates, the Company will match the first 3% of participant contribution and
50% of the next 2% of participant contribution. The Company match contribution vests immediately for these non-highly compensated associates.

Under statutory requirements, the Company contributes to retirement plans for its Canadian and Asian operations. Contributions under these plans in
fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 were immaterial.

14. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
Prior to the acquisition of the DSNA Business, the Company operated under one operating segment. Since November 21, 2004, the Company has
segmented its operations based on management responsibility: The Children’s Place stores and the Disney Stores. Direct administrative expenses are recorded
by each segment. Shared services are not allocated, and principally include executive management, finance, real estate, human resources, legal and
information technology services. Certain centrally managed functions such as distribution center expenses are allocated to each segment based upon
management’s estimate of usage or other contractual means. The Company periodically reviews these allocations and adjusts them based upon changes in
business circumstances. Shared service assets principally represent capitalized software and computer equipment. All other administrative assets are allocated
between the two operating segments.
The following tables provide fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 segment level financial information (in millions):

Net sales
Segment operating profit

Year ended January 28, 2006
The Children’s
Disney
Shared
Place
Store
Services

$ 1,171.0

$ 497.7

14.5%
532.0

Operating income as a percent of net sales

Total assets
Capital expenditures

$

(3.4)

170.0

44.3

(0.7)%

209.1
33.0

—
(63.9)
N/A
16.2
11.9

Total
Company

$1,668.7
102.7
6.2%
757.3
89.2
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The Children’s
Place

Net sales
Segment operating profit
Operating income as a percent of net
sales
Total assets
Capital expenditures

Year ended January 29, 2005
Disney
Shared
Store (1)
Services

$994.1
109.0

$ 163.4
6.1

10.9%
399.6
52.8

$

—
(46.0)

N/A

3.7%

206.6

10.0
4.3

0.7

Total
Company

$1,157.5
69.1
6.0%
616.2
57.8

(1) Represents 10 weeks of operations for the Disney Store business, commencing November 21, 2004.

Since the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeded the amounts paid to acquire the DSNA Business, the Company recorded no basis
in the property and equipment it acquired with the DSNA Business. Correspondingly, the Company recorded no depreciation expense for the Disney Store
business in fiscal 2004 as the post-acquisition capital expenditures were not yet placed in service.
Revenues attributable to domestic and foreign operations were as follows (in millions):
January 28,

Fiscal Year Ended

January 29,

January 31,

January 28,

January 29,

January 31,

$ 1,525.0

$ 1,068.5
89.0
$1,157.5

$ 748.0
49.9
$ 797.9

2006

United States and Puerto Rico
Canada
Total

143.7

$1,668.7

2005

2004

The Company’s long-lived assets, by geographic region, are comprised of net property and equipment, long-term deferred income taxes and other assets,
and are as follows (in millions):
Fiscal Year Ended

January 28,

January 29,

(As adjusted)

(As adjusted)

2006

$262.7
32.7
1.9
$ 297.3

United States and Puerto Rico
Canada
Asia
Total

2005

$196.1
26.5

1.4

$ 224.0
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15. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)
In the opinion of management, the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements presented below contain all material adjustments, consisting of
normal recurring accruals, necessary to present fairly the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods indicated, and
have been prepared in a manner consistent with the audited financial statements contained herein. Due to the seasonal nature of the Company’s business, the
results of operations in any given interim period are not indicative of operating results for a full fiscal year.
The following tables summarize the quarterly condensed consolidated statements of income data for the periods indicated, giving effect to the restatement
described above in Note 4—Retrospective Application of Construction Period Occupancy Costs (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Net sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Operating income (loss)
Net income (loss)
Basic net income (loss) per common share
Diluted net income (loss) per common share

Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006
Second Quarter
(As reported)
(As adjusted)

First Quarter
(As reported)
(As adjusted)

$369,217
141,530
112,021
12,875
16,634
10,205
$
0.37
$
0.36

$369,217
141,530
113,424
12,124
15,982
9,798
$
0.36
$
0.34

$ 318,750
99,075
116,096
13,271
(30,292)
(18,274)
$ (0.66)
$ (0.66)

$ 318,750
99,075
117,892
12,496
(31,313)
(18,911)
$ (0.68)
$ (0.68)

Fiscal Year Ended January 28, 2006
Fourth Quarter

Net sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Operating income
Net income (1)
Basic net income per common share(1)
Diluted net income per common share (1)

Net sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Operating income (loss)
Net income (loss)
Basic net income (loss) per common share
Diluted net income (loss) per common share

Third Quarter(1)
(As reported)
(As adjusted)

$ 441,051
185,168
128,492
13,822
42,854
29,254
$
1.05
$
1.02

$ 441,051
185,168
129,726
13,006
42,436
28,993
$
1.05
$
1.01

Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005
Second Quarter
(As reported)
(As adjusted)

First Quarter
(As reported)
(As adjusted)

$225,779
94,183
62,680
12,622
18,881
11,533
$
0.43
$
0.42

$539,718
235,467
144,642
15,260
75,565
45,695
$
1.64
$
1.57

$225,779
94,183
63,579
11,961
18,643
11,387
$
0.42
$
0.41

$189,165
60,739
64,238
12,830
(16,329)
(9,911)
$
(0.37)
$
(0.37)

$189,165
60,739
65,174
12,143
(16,578)
(10,065)
$
(0.37)
$
(0.37)
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Fiscal Year Ended January 29, 2005
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter (2)
(As reported)
(As adjusted)
(As reported)
(As adjusted)

$280,496
116,496
74,016

Net sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Operating income
Net income (2)
Basic net income per common share(2)
Diluted net income per common share (2)

$280,496
116,496
74,930
12,297
29,269
17,553
$
0.65
$
0.64

13,000

29,480
17,683
$
0.66
$
0.65

$ 462,108
180,449
129,146

$ 462,108
180,449

13,383

12,648
37,766
23,881
$
0.88
$
0.85

37,920
23,975
$
0.89
$
0.85

130,035

(1) Third quarter of fiscal 2005 included an extraordinary gain of $1,665, or $0.06 per share, after taxes, resulting from the finalization of the difference
between the fair value of the DSNA Business acquired versus the amount the Company paid (See Note 2—Acquisition of the DSNA Business.)
(2) Fourth quarter included 10 weeks of operations for the Disney Store business, commencing November 21, 2004. Fourth quarter also included an
extraordinary gain of $273, or $0.01 per share, after taxes, resulting from the difference between the fair value of the DSNA Business acquired versus
the amount the Company paid (See Note 2—Acquisition of the DSNA Business.)
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The following tables summarize the quarterly condensed consolidated balance sheet data for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Total assets
Current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total stockholders’ equity

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Total assets
Current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total stockholders’ equity

July 30, 2005
(As adjusted)

April 30, 2005
(As reported) (As adjusted)

(As reported)

$ 370,332
222,312
605,534
170,057
277,355
328,179

$385,379
228,918
627,027
194,485
308,125
318,902

$ 370,322
203,391
593,912
170,057
276,895
317,017

May 1, 2004
(As adjusted)

(As reported)

$385,379
208,507
614,299
194,485
307,196
307,103

July 31, 2004

(As reported)

(As adjusted)

$216,919
211,989

$216,919
194,416

$ 207,501
212,298

$ 207,501
194,383

444,473
90,030

433,717
90,030

436,004

425,003

176,002
268,471

175,624
258,093

88,832
176,292
259,712

88,832
175,822
249,181

October 29, 2005
(As reported)
(As adjusted)

$465,099
237,467
717,084
241,406
366,730
350,354

$ 465,099
216,505
703,963
241,406
365,669
338,294

October 30, 2004
(As reported) (As adjusted)

$226,548
221,410
463,841
96,924
182,805
281,036

$226,548
203,282
452,709
96,924
182,333

270,376

The following tables summarize the quarterly year-to-date condensed consolidated statements of cash flows data for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Cash flows provided by (used
in) operating activities
Cash flows used in investing
activities
Cash flows (used in) provided
by financing activities

Thirteen Weeks Ended
April 30, 2005
(As reported) (As adjusted)

$ 28,824

$ 27,421

Thirty-Nine Weeks Ended
October 29, 2005
(As reported) (As adjusted)

$ (7,700)

$ (11,065)

$(19,515)

$ (24,230)

(55,461)

(54,058)

(33,189)

(29,824)

(54,112)

(49,397)

(31,460)

(31,460)

(2,895)

(2,895)

29,895

29,895

Thirteen Weeks Ended

Cash flows provided by (used
in) operating activities
Cash flows used in investing
activities
Cash flows provided by
financing activities

Twenty-Six Weeks Ended
July 30, 2005
(As reported) (As adjusted)

May 1, 2004
(As reported) (As adjusted)

$ 22,459

$ 21,560

Twenty-Six Weeks Ended

July 31, 2004

(As reported)

(As adjusted)

$ (18,336)

$ (20,194)

Thirty-Nine Weeks Ended
October 30, 2004
(As reported) (As adjusted)

$ 14,257

$ 11,485

(34,011)

(33,112)

(4,556)

(2,698)

(25,036)

(22,264)

1,792

1,792

2,078

2,078

2,696

2,696

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
SKM Financial Advisory Services

In conjunction with a 1996 private placement, the Company sold common stock to two funds, the SK Equity Fund, L.P. and the SK Investment Fund,
L.P. (collectively, the “SK Funds”) managed by Saunders, Karp & Megrue, L.P. (“SKM”). In addition, the Company entered into a management agreement
with SKM which provided for the payment of an annual fee of approximately $0.2 million, payable quarterly in advance, in exchange for certain financial
advisory services. This management agreement remained in
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effect until SKM or any of its affiliates’ total ownership of the Company’s common stock was less than 10% on a fully diluted basis. On November 18,
2004, the SK funds sold the Company’s common stock, which brought their ownership position to less than 10% on a fully diluted basis. Effective for fiscal
2005, the management agreement with SKM was no longer in effect. Pursuant to this management agreement, the Company incurred fees and expenses of
approximately $0.2 million in each of the fiscal years 2004 and 2003.
Stockholders Agreement
The Company and certain of its stockholders are parties to a Stockholders Agreement (the “Stockholders Agreement”). The Stockholders Agreement sets
forth certain rights and obligations in order to ensure a degree of management continuity and ownership of the Company by imposing certain restrictions and
obligations on the ownership, retention and disposition of the capital stock of the Company.

Under the terms of the Stockholders Agreement, the rights of any party thereunder will terminate at the time that such party’s common stock constitutes
less than 25% of the shares of common stock owned by such party on the date of the Stockholders Agreement. All the provisions of the Stockholders
Agreement will terminate when no party to the Stockholders Agreement beneficially owns shares representing at least 25% of the outstanding common stock
owned by such party on the date of the Stockholders Agreement.

On November 18, 2004, the SK Funds sold the Company’s common stock, bringing their common stock ownership to less than 25% of the shares of
common stock owned by SK Funds on the date of the Stockholders Agreement. Therefore, the SK Funds’ rights under the Stockholders Agreement
terminated. However, any and all obligations of the SK Funds under the Stockholders Agreement remain in full force and effect.
Merchandise for Re-Sale
During fiscal 2005, the Company purchased approximately $0.3 million of footwear from Nina Footwear Corporation. Stanley Silverstein, who is a
member of the Board of Directors and the father-in-law of Ezra Dabah, Chairman and CEO, owns Nina Footwear Corporation with his brother. In the opinion
of the Company, the transactions with Nina Footwear Corporation were on terms no less favorable than could have been obtained from an unaffiliated third
party.

Employment Agreements
The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain of its executives which provide for the payment of severance up to three times the
executive’s salary and certain benefits following any termination without cause. These contracts commit the Company in the aggregate to approximately
$4.1 million of employment termination costs, of which approximately $3.9 million represents severance payments.
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Employment of Family Members
Ezra Dabah, Chairman and CEO, is the son-in-law of Stanley Silverstein, a member of the Board of Directors. Nina Miner, who is Mr. Silverstein’s
daughter and Mr. Dabah’s sister-in-law, is employed by the Company as the Senior Vice President, Chief Creative Officer. The aggregate compensation for
Mr. Dabah’s relatives that are employed by the Company (there were four such people in each of the last three fiscal years), including Ms. Miner, is as follows
(in thousands, except share amounts):
Fiscal year ended:

January 28, 2006
January 29, 2005
January 31, 2004

Cash Compensation

Options Granted

$2,206
1,506

150,000

1,033

44,600

57,050

Fiscal 2005 cash compensation includes relocation and housing allowances provided to two of Mr. Dabah’s relatives who are currently directly employed
by the Disney Store business.

Shareholder Receivable
In August, 1999, the Company incurred approximately $0.2 million in legal, accounting, printing and other costs for a secondary offering that was
subsequently canceled. SKM, Ezra Dabah, Chairman and CEO, and Stanley Silverstein, who is a member of the Board of Directors and Mr. Dabah’s fatherin-law, had agreed to reimburse the Company for these costs, which were included on the balance sheet as a component of other assets. The Company forgave

approximately $8,000 of the shareholder receivable as part of a severance agreement with one of its former executives. As of April 15, 2004, SKM and Ezra
Dabah reimbursed the Company approximately $0.2 million for their portions of the shareholder receivable. On March 7, 2005, Mr. Silverstein reimbursed
the Company for the remaining $30,000 outstanding portion of the shareholder receivable.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (UNAUDITED)
Performance Awards
On January 30, 2006, under the 2005 Plan, restricted stock awards (“Performance Awards”) to be paid in the form of shares of common stock
(“Performance Shares”) were granted to key executives (the “Participants”). The issuance of Performance Shares under each Performance Award will be
contingent upon, among other things, meeting certain consolidated earnings per share and cumulative earnings targets designated by the Compensation
Committee for the Company’s 2005, 2006 and 2007 fiscal years (the “Performance Period”). If these targets are met or exceeded during the Performance Period,
the Participants may earn up to a maximum aggregate of approximately 1,200,000 Performance Shares at 200% (approximately 600,000 Performance Shares at
100%). Participants vest in the first 50% of the earned shares (those shares issuable if the performance targets are met or exceeded) at the end of fiscal 2007 and
vest in the other 50% of the earned shares at the end of fiscal 2008. On January 30, 2006 and March 13, 2006, the Company granted Performance Awards for
500,891 shares, assuming the performance targets are met (100%).

Changes in Senior Management
On March 8, 2006, so that he may pursue other interests, Hiten Patel, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, announced his resignation effective
as of April 15, 2006. Upon his resignation, Susan Riley, Senior Vice President, Finance, who joined the Company on March 13, 2006, will assume the
responsibilities of Chief Financial Officer and will report directly to Ezra Dabah, Chairman and CEO.
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On April 6, 2006, so that he may pursue other interests, Mario Ciampi, President, Disney Store North America, announced his resignation effective as
of April 29, 2006. While the Company has not identified a successor, the Company is actively recruiting to fill the position. In the interim, Ezra Dabah,
Chairman and CEO, will assume responsibilities for the Disney Store business.
For these and other employee separations, the Company estimates it will record approximately $1.2 million in severance and related expenses in the first
quarter of fiscal 2006.

Amendments to Credit Facilities
On April 11, 2006, the Company amended the Amended Loan Agreement and the Hoop Loan Agreement. The Amended Loan Agreement was amended to
permit unused capital expenditure covenant capacity from one year to roll to the subsequent year, thus increasing the capital expenditure limitations. The Hoop
Loan Agreement was similarly amended. Further, the Hoop Loan Agreement amendment converts the borrowing base calculation from the cost method to the
Company’s retail inventory method and releases liens on certain assets.
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(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

THE CHILDREN’S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE II
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JANUARY 28, 2006, JANUARY 29, 2005 AND JANUARY 31, 2004
(in thousands)
COLUMN A

Inventory markdown reserve(1)
Year ended January 28, 2006
Year ended January 29, 2005
Year ended January 31, 2004

COLUMN B
Balance at

COLUMN E

beginning

expenses

other accounts

Deductions

Balance at
end of year

$3,776
1,614
1,402

$1,695
2,754
606

$0

$ (3,117)
(592)
(394)

$ 2,353
3,776
1,614

of year

(1) Represents reserves to reflect merchandise inventories at realizable value.
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(a)(3) Exhibits

COLUMN D

COLUMN C—ADDITIONS
Charged
Charged
to
to

0
0

Exhibit

Description

3.1*
3.2*
4.1*

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company.

9.1*
10.1*
10.2*

Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement, dated as of September 18, 1997.

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company.

Form of Certificate for Common Stock of the Company.

10.3*

1996 Stock Option Plan of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc.
1997 Stock Option Plan of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc.
The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. 401(k) Plan.

10.4*

Form of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

10.8*
10.10*
10.12*
10.17*
10.20**

Employment Agreement dated as of June 27, 1996 between the Company and Ezra Dabah.

10.21**
10.22***

10.25‡
10.26‡
10.33^

10.34(1)

10.35(2)
10.36(3)
10.37(3)

10.38(3)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and the members of its Board of Directors.
Form of Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of September 18, 1997.

Buying Agency Agreement dated September 17, 1996 between the Company and KS Best International.
Lease for a distribution center and corporate headquarters facility between the Company and Hartz
Mountain Associates, dated June 30, 1998.
Software Purchase and license agreement between the Company and Trimax Inc. dated August 14, 1998.
Amendment to a lease for a distribution center and corporate headquarters facility between the Company
and Hartz Mountain Associates, dated November 20, 1998.
Lease Agreement between the Company and Haven Gateway LLC, dated as of August 17, 2000.
Lease Agreement between the Company and Hartz Mountain Associates, dated as of October 31, 2000.
Lease Agreement as of August 12, 2003 between Orlando Corporation and The Children’s Place (Canada),
LP. Together with, Indemnity Agreement as of August 12, 2003 between the Company and Orlando
Corporation. Together with, Surrender of Lease as of August 12, 2003 between the Company and Orlando
Corporation and Orion Properties Ltd.
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of January 22, 2004 between the Company and
Neal Goldberg.
Lease Agreement between the Company and Turnpike Crossing I, LLC, dated as of July 14, 2004.
Acquisition Agreement dated as of October 19, 2004 by and among Disney Enterprises, Inc., Disney
Credit Card Services, Inc., Hoop Holdings, LLC and Hoop Canada Holdings, Inc.
Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of October 30, 2004 by and among
The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and each of its subsidiaries that are signatories thereto, as
borrowers, the financial institutions named therein, and Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC, as agent.
License and Conduct of Business Agreement dated as of November 21, 2004 by and among TDS
Franchising, LLC, The Disney Store, LLC and The Disney Store (Canada) Ltd.
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10.39(3)

10.40(3)

10.41(4)

10.42(5)

Guaranty and Commitment dated as of November 21, 2004 by The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc.
and Hoop Holdings, LLC in favor of The Disney Store, LLC, The Disney Store (Canada) Ltd. and TDS
Franchising, LLC.
Loan and Security Agreement dated as of November 21, 2004 between The Disney Store, LLC and Hoop
Retail Stores, LLC, as borrowers, Hoop Canada Holdings, Inc., as guarantor, Hoop Canada, Inc. and
The Disney Store (Canada) Ltd., as secondary guarantors, the financial institutions named therein, and
Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC, as agent.
First Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement, dated December 31,
2004 by and among The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and each of its subsidiaries that are
signatories thereto, as borrowers, the financial institutions named therein, and Wells Fargo Retail Finance,
LLC, as agent.
Second Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement, dated April 12, 2005
by and among The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and each of its subsidiaries that are signatories,
thereto, as borrowers, the financial institutions named therein, and Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC, as
agent.

10.43(6)

Third Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement, dated July 29, 2005
by and among The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and each of its subsidiaries that are signatories
thereto as borrowers, the financial institutions named therein, and Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC, as
agent.

10.44(7)

Letter Agreement dated May 17, 2005 modifying certain terms of Mr. Dabah’s Employment Agreement

dated June 27, 1996.

10.45(7)

Letter Agreement dated May 17, 2005 modifying certain terms of Mr. Goldberg’s Amended and Restated
Employment Agreement dated January 22, 2004.

10.46

Letter Agreement dated April 6, 2006 amending the Internet start date among Hoop Retail Stores, LLC,

10.47

10.48

10.49

21.1
23.1
31
32

*

Hoop Canada, Inc. and TDS Franchising, LLC.
Fourth Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement, dated April 11, 2006
by and among The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and each of its subsidiaries that are signatories
thereto as borrowers, the financial institutions named therein, and Wells Fargo Finance, LLC, as agent.
First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dated as of April 11, 2006 between Hoop Retail Stores,
LLC, as borrower; Hoop Canada Holdings, Inc., as guarantor; Hoop Canada, Inc., as secondary
guarantor; the financial institutions named therein; and Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC, as agent.
Letter Agreement dated April 5, 2006 amending the refurbishment commitment among Hoop Retail Stores,
LLC, Hoop Canada, Inc. and TDS Franchising, LLC.
Subsidiaries of the Company
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Section 302 Certifications
Section 906 Certifications

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-31535). Exhibit numbers are identical to the exhibit numbers
incorporated by reference to such registration statement.
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**

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended August 1, 1998. Exhibit 10.20 was filed previously as
Exhibit 10.2 and Exhibit 10.21 was filed previously as Exhibit 10.3 in such quarterly report.

*** Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended October 31, 1998. Exhibit 10.22 was filed previously as
Exhibit 10.5 in such quarterly report.
‡

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended October 28, 2000. Exhibit 10.25 was filed previously as
Exhibit 10.3 in such quarterly report and Exhibit 10.26 was filed previously as Exhibit 10.4 in such quarterly report.

^

Incorporated by reference to the registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ending November 1, 2003. Exhibit 10.33 was filed previously as
Exhibit 10.2 in such quarterly report.

(1) Incorporated by reference to registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 1, 2004. Exhibit 10.34 was filed previously as
Exhibit 10.1 in such quarterly report.
(2) Incorporated by reference to registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended July 31, 2004. Exhibit 10.35 was filed previously as
Exhibit 10.2 in such quarterly report.
(3) Incorporated by reference to registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended October 30, 2004. Exhibit 10.36 was previously filed as

Exhibit 2.1 in such quarterly report, Exhibit 10.37 was previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 in such quarterly report, Exhibit 10.38 was previously filed as
Exhibit 10.4 in such quarterly report, Exhibit 10.39 was previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 in such quarterly report and Exhibit 10.40 was previously filed
as Exhibit 10.6 in such quarterly report.
(4) Previously filed in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated April 14, 2005.

(5) Incorporated by reference to registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended April 30, 2005. Exhibit 10.42 was previously filed as
Exhibit 10.1 in such quarterly report.
(6) Previously filed on Form 8-K dated July 29, 2005.
(7) Incorporated by reference to registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended July 30, 2005. Exhibit 10.44 was previously filed as
Exhibit 10.2 in such quarterly report. Exhibit 10.45 was previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 in such quarterly report.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE CHILDREN’S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC.

By: /s/ EZRA DABAH
Ezra Dabah
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
April 11, 2006
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

April 11, 2006

Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer)

April 11, 2006

/s/ CHARLES CROVITZ
Charles Crovitz

Director

April 11, 2006

/s/ MALCOLM ELVEY
Malcolm Elvey

Director

April 11, 2006

/s/ ROBERT FISCH
Robert Fisch

Director

April 11, 2006

/s/ SALLY FRAME KASAKS
Sally Frame Kasaks

Director

April 11, 2006

/s/ STANLEY SILVERSTEIN
Stanley Silverstein

Director

April 11, 2006

/s/ EZRA DABAH
Ezra Dabah

/s/ HITEN D. PATEL
Hiten D. Patel
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Exhibit 10.46

TDS FRANCHISING, LLC
500 SOUTH BUENA VISTA STREET
BURBANK, CALIFORNIA 91521

April 6, 2006
Hoop Retail Stores, LLC
Hoop Canada, Inc.
c/o The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc.
915 Secaucus Road
Secaucus, New Jersey 07094
Facsimile: (201) 558-2837
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Re: Extension of Internet Start Date

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We refer to the License and Conduct of Business Agreement dated as of November 21, 2004 (the “ License Agreement ”), by and amongst TDS
Franchising, LLC (“ TDSF”), Hoop Retail Stores, LLC, as successor to The Disney Store, LLC (“ Hoop USA ”), and Hoop Canada, Inc., as successor to
The Disney Store (Canada) Ltd. (“ Hoop Canada ”). Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the respective meanings assigned thereto in
the License Agreement.

WHEREAS, the parties previously entered into a letter agreement which provided that the Internet Start Date would changed from October 1, 2005 to
a date mutually agreed upon by the parties, but in any event, not later than June 15, 2006; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to further extend the Internet Start Date beyond June 15, 2006.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein, the parties do hereby agree that, as used in the License Agreement,
the Internet Start Date shall be changed from June 15, 2006 to a date that is mutually agreed upon in writing by each of TDSF, Hoop USA and Hoop Canada
in its respective business judgment, but in any event, not later than April 1, 2007, provided that, for purposes of Section 7.1.1(II) of the License Agreement,
the Internet Start Date shall remain October 1, 2005.
If you agree with the foregoing, please so indicate by executing this letter in the place provided below and returning a fully executed original of this
letter to the undersigned, whereupon this letter will be deemed a binding amendment to the License Agreement. Except as specifically provided herein with
respect to the Internet Start Date, all other terms and conditions of the License Agreement shall not be modified, changed or amended in any manner whatsoever
and shall remain in full force and effect.

Sincerely,

TDS FRANCHISING, LLC

By: /s/ James M. Kapenstein
Name: James M. Kapenstein

Title: Vice President

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO AS OF THE DATE FIRST SET FORTH ABOVE:

HOOP RETAIL STORES, LLC

By:
/s/ Steven Balasiano
Name: Steven Balasiano
Title Senior Vice President and Secretary

HOOP CANADA, INC.

By:
/s/ Steven Balasiano
Name: Steven Balasiano
Title Senior Vice President and Secretary

cc:

Hoop Retail Stores, LLC
Hoop Canada, Inc.
c/o The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc.

915 Secaucus Road
Secaucus, New Jersey 07094
Facsimile: (201) 558-2825
Attention: General Counsel

Stroock & Stroock & Lavan LLP
180 Maiden Lane
New York, New York 10038
Facsimile: (212) 806-6006
Attention: Jeffrey S. Lowenthal, Esq.

2

Exhibit 10.47

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO
FOURTH AMENDED AND RESTATED
LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

WELLS FARGO RETAIL FINANCE, LLC, Agent

April 11, 2006
THIS FOURTH AMENDMENT TO FOURTH AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT (this “ Fourth
Amendment ”) is made in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and benefits to be derived herefrom to the Fourth Amended and Restated
Loan and Security Agreement (as amended and in effect, the “ Loan Agreement ”) dated October 30, 2004 and effective as of October 31, 2004 among The
Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. (the “ Parent”) and each of the Parent’s Subsidiaries identified on the signature pages thereto (such Subsidiaries, together
with Parent, are referred to hereinafter individually and collectively, jointly and severally, as the “ Borrowers”), with each of their chief executive offices
located at 915 Secaucus Road, Secaucus, New Jersey 07094, on the one hand, and the financial institutions listed on the signature pages thereto (such
financial institutions, together with their respective successors and assigns, are referred to hereinafter each individually as a “ Lender” and collectively as the
“Lenders”), and Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC, as Agent, Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation (New England) formerly known as Congress Financial
Corporation (New England), as Documentation Agent, and LaSalle Retail Finance, a Division of LaSalle Business Credit, LLC, as Co-Agent, on the other
hand.
Background:
At this time, the Borrowers and the Lenders desire to further amend the Loan Agreement. Accordingly, it is hereby agreed by and between the
Borrowers and the Lenders, as follows:

1.

Amendment to Article 7 of Loan Agreement : Section 7.20 of the Loan Agreement is hereby amended by adding the following sentence

to the end thereof:

“Further, any unutilized Capital Expenditures in any given fiscal year may be carried forward as an increase to the subsequent year’s Capital
Expenditure covenant, without regard to any prior carryover.”

2.

Ratification of Loan Documents. No Claims against the Lenders:

(a)
Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement and of each of the other Loan Documents remain in
full force and effect. The Borrowers hereby ratify, confirm, and re-affirm all terms and provisions of the Loan Documents. The Borrowers hereby
represent and warrant that (i) except with respect to those representations and warranties which are based upon written disclosure schedules (which
have not been updated as of the date of this Fourth Amendment), all representations and warranties contained in the Loan Agreement and the other
Loan Documents are true and correct as of the date hereof.

1

(b)
The Borrowers acknowledge and agree that there is no basis nor set of facts on which any amount (or any portion thereof) owed
by the Borrowers under any Loan Document could be reduced, offset, waived, or forgiven, by rescission or otherwise; nor is there any claim,
counterclaim, off set, or defense (or other right, remedy, or basis having a similar effect) available to the Borrowers with regard thereto; nor is there
any basis on which the terms and conditions of any of the Obligations could be claimed to be other than as stated on the written instruments which
evidence such Obligations.
(c)
The Borrowers hereby acknowledge and agree that the Borrowers have no offsets, defenses, claims, or counterclaims against the
Lenders, or their respective officers, directors, employees, attorneys, representatives, predecessors, successors, or assigns with respect to the
Obligations, or otherwise, and that if the Borrowers now have, or ever did have, any offsets, defenses, claims, or counterclaims against the Lenders,
or their respective officers, directors, employees, attorneys, representatives, predecessors, successors, and assigns, whether known or unknown, at
law or in equity, from the beginning of the world through this date and through the time of execution of this Fourth Amendment, all of them are
hereby expressly WAIVED, and the Borrowers hereby RELEASE the Lenders, and their respective officers, directors, employees, attorneys,
representatives, predecessors, successors, and assigns from any liability therefor.
3.

Miscellaneous :
(a)

Terms used in this Fourth Amendment which are defined in the Loan Agreement are used as so defined.

(b)
This Fourth Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, and
all of which together shall constitute one agreement.
(c)
This Fourth Amendment expresses the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby. No
prior negotiations or discussions shall limit, modify, or otherwise affect the provisions hereof.

(d)
Any determination that any provision of this Fourth Amendment or any application hereof is invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in
any respect and in any instance shall not affect the validity, legality, or enforceability of such provision in any other instance, or the validity,

legality, or enforceability of any other provisions of this Fourth Amendment.
(e)
The Borrowers shall pay on demand all costs and expenses of the Lenders, including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees incurred
by the Lenders in connection with the preparation, negotiation, execution, and delivery of this Fourth Amendment.

(f)

In connection with the interpretation of this Fourth Amendment and all other documents, instruments, and agreements incidental

hereto:

2

(i)
All rights and obligations hereunder and thereunder, including matters of construction, validity, and performance,
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the State of California and are intended to take effect as sealed
instruments.

(ii)
The captions of this Fourth Amendment are for convenience purposes only, and shall not be used in construing the
intent of the Lenders and the Borrowers under this Fourth Amendment.

(iii)
In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of this Fourth Amendment and any of the other Loan
Documents or other agreements entered into by and between the Lenders and the Borrowers, the provisions of this Fourth Amendment shall
govern and control.
(g)
The Lenders and the Borrowers have prepared this Fourth Amendment and all documents, instruments, and agreements
incidental hereto with the aid and assistance of their respective counsel. Accordingly, all of them shall be deemed to have been drafted by the Lenders
and the Borrowers and shall not be construed against either party.

[Signatures Follow]
3

THE CHILDREN’S PLACE RETAIL
STORES, INC. , a Delaware corporation
By: /s/ Hiten Patel
Name:
Hiten Patel
Title:
SVP CFO

THE CHILDREN’S PLACE SERVICES
COMPANY LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company
By: /s/ Hiten Patel
Name:
Hiten Patel
Title:
SVP CFO
WELLS FARGO RETAIL FINANCE,
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
as Agent and as a Lender

By: /s/ Michelle L. Ayou
Name:
Michelle L. Ayou
Title:
Vice President

WACHOVIA CAPITAL FINANCE
CORPORATION (NEW ENGLAND), a
Massachusetts corporation, as
Documentation Agent and as a Lender

By: /s/ Willis A. Williams
Name:
Willis A. Williams
Title:
Vice President

LASALLE RETAIL FINANCE ,

a Division of LaSalle Business Credit, LLC,
as Agent for Standard Federal Bank
National Association
as Co-Agent and as a Lender

By: /s/ Matthew D. Potter
Name:
Matthew D. Potter
Title: Assistant Vice President
4

WEBSTER BUSINESS CREDIT CORP.,

By: /s/ Walter Stockhecker
Name:
Walter Stockhecker
Title: Vice President

THE CIT GROUP/BUSINESS CREDIT,
INC.,
By: /s/ Manuel R. Borges
Name:
Manuel R. Borges
Title: Vice President
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT
FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT (this “ Amendment ”) dated as of April 11, 2006 among
Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC (in such capacity, herein the “ Agent”), a Delaware limited liability company with offices at One Boston Place —

19th Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02109, as agent for the ratable benefit of the “ Revolving Credit Lenders ”, who are, at present, those financial
institutions identified on the signature pages of this Amendment and who in the future are those Persons (if any) who become “Revolving Credit Lenders” in
accordance with the provisions of Article 17 of the Loan Agreement described below;

and
The Revolving Credit Lenders;

and
Hoop Retail Stores, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company with its principal executive offices at c/o The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc.,
915 Secaucus Road, Secaucus, New Jersey 07094 (as successor in interest to The Disney Store, LLC, a California limited liability company) (the
“Borrower”),
in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained and benefits to be derived herefrom.

BACKGROUND :
The Borrower, the Revolving Credit Lenders, and the Agent, among others, have entered into a certain Loan and Security Agreement dated as of
November 21, 2004 (the “ Loan Agreement ”). At this time, the Borrower and the Revolving Credit Lenders desire to amend and modify certain terms and
provisions of the Loan Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements herein contained, the parties hereto hereby agree that the Loan
Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

1.

Incorporation of Terms and Conditions of Loan Agreement . All of the terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement (including, without limitation, all
definitions set forth therein) are specifically incorporated herein by reference. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the same
meaning as in the Loan Agreement.

2.

Corporate Reorganization . Subsequent to the closing on the Loan Agreement, the Lead Borrower and the Borrowers consummated a corporate
reorganization (as more particularly described on Exhibit “A”, annexed hereto) resulting in the Borrower being the only borrower under the Loan
Agreement. Accordingly, the Loan Agreement and each of the other Loan Documents are hereby deemed amended in all respects as may be necessary
with respect to each usage of the terms “Lead Borrower” and “Borrowers” so as to either (i) delete each term, or (ii) deem each term to read the
“Borrower”, as the context may require.

3.

Representations and Warranties. The Borrower hereby represents and warrants that (i) except as the Agent may have expressly waived in writing
prior to the date of this Amendment, the Borrower is not In Default under the Loan Agreement or under any other Loan Document, and (ii) except with
respect to those representations and warranties which are based upon written disclosure schedules (which have not been updated as of the date of this
Amendment), all representations and warranties contained in the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents are true and correct as of the date
hereof.

4.

Amendment to Article I of the Loan Agreement . Article I of the Loan Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

a.

The definition of “Borrowing Base” is hereby deleted in its entirety, and the following is inserted in its place:

“Borrowing Base”:

The aggregate of the following:

The Inventory Advance Rate times the Retail Value of the Borrowers’ Eligible Inventory (other than Eligible L/C Inventory and
Eligible In-transit Inventory, and net of Inventory Reserves), but in no event greater than Eighty-five percent (85%) (or Ninety
percent (90%) during the Seasonal Period) of the NRLV of the Borrowers’ Eligible Inventory (net of Inventory Reserves)

Plus
The Inventory Advance Rate times the Cost of the Borrowers’ Eligible In-transit Inventory (net of Inventory Reserves), but in no
event greater than Eighty-five percent (85%) (or Ninety percent (90%) during the Seasonal Period) of the NRLV of the
Borrowers’ Eligible In-transit Inventory (net of Inventory Reserves); (in no event shall the advances against Eligible In-transit
Inventory ever exceed (i) $10,000,000.00 during the months of September and October each year (and during November, 2004), or
(ii) $5,000,000.00 at all other times)

Plus
The Inventory Advance Rate times the Cost of the Borrowers’ Eligible L/C Inventory (net of Inventory Reserves), but in no event
greater than Eighty-five percent (85%) of the NRLV of the Borrowers’ Eligible L/C Inventory (net of Inventory Reserves).

Plus
The face amount of Eligible Credit Card Receivables multiplied by Ninety percent (90%).

b.

The definition of “Capital Expenditures” is hereby deleted in its entirety, and the following is inserted in its place:

“Capital Expenditures” means the expenditure of funds which may be capitalized in accordance with GAAP, as then in effect
as of the date of any relevant determination. The testing of compliance by the Borrower with any financial performance
covenant relating to Capital Expenditures where a change in GAAP has been implemented by the Company applicable to
accounting periods subsequent to January 28, 2006, and where preparation of the Borrower’s statements and reports in
compliance with such change results in the breach of such a financial performance covenant, where such a breach would not
have occurred if such change had not taken place, or visa versa, shall be made as if no such material accounting change in
GAAP had been made (other than any such material accounting change specifically taken into account in the setting of any such
covenant).
c.

A new definition of “Retail Value” is hereby agreed upon as follows, and inserted in appropriate alphabetical order:

“Retail Value”: At any given time, the value of the Borrowers’ retail Inventory valued as set forth on the Borrower’s last
completed Control Sheet report (which generally reflects each item of Inventory at its lowest ticketed or promoted price offered to
the public, after all mark-downs) and shall be determined in accordance with the retail method of accounting, reflecting the
Borrower’s historic business practices.”

5.

Corresponding Amendments . The term “Cost” is hereby deleted from Sections 2.1(b)(ii) and 2.17(c)(i) of the Loan Agreement, and the term “Retail
Value” is hereby inserted in its place in each instance where it appears therein.

6.

Amendment to Section 4.7 of the Loan Agreement . The first sentence of Section 4.7 of the Loan Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety, and the
following is inserted in its place:

“Neither the Borrower nor Hoop Canada, Inc. have nor shall hereafter have any Indebtedness other than any Permitted Indebtedness.”

7.

Amendment to Exhibit 5.11(a) to the Loan Agreement . Section 2 of Exhibit 5.11(a) to the Loan Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety, and the
following is inserted in its place:

“2.
Capital Expenditures :
The Borrower shall not permit its Capital Expenditures for FY2005 to exceed $69,000,000.00.
Commencing FY2006 and for each fiscal year thereafter, the Capital Expenditure covenant (net of Capital Expenditures consisting of tenant
construction allowances or other allowances granted by the applicable landlord) shall be 115% of the amount allocated as Capital Expenditures in the
Business Plan for such fiscal year to which the Agent has provided its written sign off, as provided herein, such sign off not to be unreasonably
withheld. Further, any unutilized Capital Expenditures in any given fiscal year may be carried forward as an increase to the subsequent year’s
Capital Expenditure covenant, without regard to any prior carryover.”

8.

Release of Canadian Guarantors and Canadian Collateral . From and after the execution of this Amendment:

a.

b.

The liens and security interests granted to the Agent and the Revolving Credit Lenders on any Inventory and other Collateral located in
Canada is terminated and released. Incidental thereto, the Agent shall:

i.

Return the Guaranty executed by Hoop Canada, Inc. and The Disney Store (Canada) Ltd.;

ii.

Return the Canadian General Security Agreements executed by Hoop Canada, Inc. and The Disney Store (Canada) Ltd.;

iii.

Terminate the UCC Financing Statements naming Hoop Canada, Inc. and The Disney Store (Canada) Ltd.;

iv.

Terminate the PPSA Registration Statement naming Hoop Canada, Inc. filed in New Brunswick; and

v.

Terminate the PPSA Registration Statements naming The Disney Store (Canada) Ltd. filed in (i) Alberta, (ii) British Columbia,
(iii) Manitoba, (iv) Nova Scotia, and (v) Ontario.

Hoop Canada, Inc. shall not transfer, assign, mortgage, pledge, lease, grant a security interest in, or encumber any of its business assets,
nor shall Hoop Canada, Inc. enter into a negative pledge agreement, or similar agreement with any other party. The Borrower expressly
acknowledges and agrees that it shall be an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents if there is a breach of

any term of this Paragraph 8(b) by Hoop Canada, Inc.

9.

No Further Modification. Except as expressly modified in the manner set forth above, the Loan Agreement and the other Loan Documents shall
remain unmodified and in full force and effect.

10.

No Claims; Waiver. The Borrower acknowledges, confirms and agrees that as of the date hereof the Borrower has no knowledge of any offsets,
defenses, claims or counterclaims against the Agent or any Revolving Credit Lender with respect to, under or relating to the Loans, the Loan
Documents, or the transactions contemplated therein, and, to the extent that the Borrower has or has ever had any such offsets, defenses, claims or
counterclaims arising on or before the date

hereof, the Borrower hereby specifically WAIVES and RELEASES any and all rights to such offsets, defenses, claims or counterclaims.

11.

Binding Agreement . The terms and provisions hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their heirs,
representatives, successors and assigns.

12.

Multiple Counterparts . This Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original and together which
shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

13.

Governing Law; Sealed Instrument . This Amendment shall be construed, governed, and enforced pursuant to the law of The Commonwealth of
Massachusetts without regard to principles of conflicts of laws, and shall take effect as a sealed instrument.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been duly executed and delivered by each of the parties hereto as of the date first above written.
(the “Borrower”)

HOOP RETAIL STORES, LLC

By /s/ Hiten Patel
Print Name:
Title:

Hiten Patel

SVP CFO

(“Agent”)

WELLS FARGO RETAIL FINANCE, LLC

By /s/ Michelle L. Ayou
Print Name:
Title:

Michelle L. Ayou

Vice President

WELLS FARGO RETAIL FINANCE, LLC,
As Revolving Credit Lender

By /s/ Michelle L. Ayou
Print Name:
Title:

Michelle L. Ayou

Vice President
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WACHOVIA CAPITAL FINANCE CORPORATION (NEW
ENGLAND), As Documentation Agent and as

ENGLAND), As Documentation Agent and as
Revolving Credit Lender

By: /s/ Willis A. Williams
Print Name:
Title:

Willis A. Williams

Vice President

LASALLE RETAIL FINANCE,
a Division of LaSalle Business Credit, LLC,
as Agent for Standard Federal Bank National Association,
As Co-Agent and as Revolving Credit Lender
By: /s/ Matthew D. Potter
Print Name:
Title:

Matthew D. Potter

Assistant Vice President

WEBSTER BUSINESS CREDIT CORP.,
as Revolving Credit Lender

By: /s/ Walter Stockhecker
Print Name:
Title:

Walter Stockhecker

Vice President

THE CIT GROUP/ BUSINESS CREDIT, INC. ,
as Revolving Credit Lender

By: /s/ Manuel R. Borges
Print Name:
Title:

Manuel R. Borges

Vice President
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Acknowledged and Agreed:

HOOP CANADA, INC.

By /s/ Hiten Patel
Print Name:
Title:

Hiten Patel

SVP CFO
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Exhibit A
Description of Merger and Amalgamation
In November 2004, Hoop Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, a wholly owned subsidiary of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, acquired 100% of the outstanding interest of The Disney Store, LLC, a California limited liability company.
In November 2004, Hoop Canada Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of Hoop Retail Stores, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, which a wholly owned subsidiary of Hoop Holdings, LLC, acquired 100% of the outstanding interest of The Disney Store (Canada) Ltd., an
Ontario corporation.

On November 22, 2004, we merged The Disney Store, LLC into Hoop Retail Stores, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, which a wholly owned
subsidiary of Hoop Holdings, LLC. Hoop Retail Stores, LLC was the surviving corporation in the merger.

On November 23, 2004, we amalgamated The Disney Store (Canada) Ltd. into Hoop Canada, Inc., a New Brunswick corporation, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Hoop Canada Holdings, Inc. Hoop Canada, Inc. was the surviving entity in the amalgamation.
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Exhibit 10.49

TDS FRANCHISING, LLC
500 SOUTH BUENA VISTA STREET
BURBANK, CALIFORNIA 91521

April 5, 2006
Hoop Retail Stores, LLC
Hoop Canada, Inc.
c/o The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc.
915 Secaucus Road
Secaucus, New Jersey 07094
Facsimile: (201) 558-2837
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Re: Date for Initial Minimum Refurbishment Commitment

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We refer to the License and Conduct of Business Agreement dated as of November 21, 2004 (as amended to date, the “ License Agreement ”), by and
amongst TDS Franchising, LLC (“ TDSF”), Hoop Retail Stores, LLC, as successor to The Disney Store, LLC (“ Hoop USA ”), and Hoop Canada, Inc., as
successor to The Disney Store (Canada) Ltd. (“ Hoop Canada ”). Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the respective meanings assigned
thereto in the License Agreement.

We hereby agree that the first reference to “January 1, 2008” in Section 9.3.5(b) of the License Agreement shall be changed to “January 1, 2009,”
which shall have the effect of extending the completion date for the Initial Minimum Refurbishment Commitment by one (1) year.
If you agree with the foregoing, please so indicate by executing this letter in the place provided below and returning a fully executed original of this
letter to the undersigned, whereupon this letter will be deemed a binding amendment to the License Agreement. Except as specifically provided herein, all other
terms and conditions of the License Agreement shall not be modified, changed or amended in any manner whatsoever and shall remain in full force and effect.

Sincerely,

TDS FRANCHISING, LLC

By: /s/ James M. Kapenstein
Name: James M. Kapenstein

Title: Vice President

[Signature Page to Letter Regarding Initial Minimum Refurbishment Commitment]
ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO AS OF THE DATE FIRST SET FORTH ABOVE:

HOOP RETAIL STORES, LLC

By:
/s/ Steven Balasiano
Name: Steve Balasiano
Title: Senior Vice President and Secretary

HOOP CANADA, INC.

By:
/s/ Steven Balasiano
Name: Steve Balasiano
Title: Senior Vice President and Secretary

cc:

Hoop Retail Stores, LLC
Hoop Canada, Inc.
c/o The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc.

915 Secaucus Road
Secaucus, New Jersey 07094

Facsimile: (201) 558-2825
Attention: General Counsel

Stroock & Stroock & Lavan LLP
180 Maiden Lane
New York, New York 10038
Facsimile: (212) 806-6006
Attention: Jeffrey S. Lowenthal, Esq.
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EXHIBIT 21.1

THE CHILDREN’S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. has the following wholly-owned subsidiaries:

The Children’s Place (Hong Kong) Limited, a Hong Kong Corporation.
thechildrensplace.com, inc. a Delaware Corporation.

The Children’s Place (Australia) Pty. Ltd., an Australian Corporation.
The Children’s Place (Virginia), LLC, a Virginia Limited Liability Company.

TCP Canada, Inc., a Nova Scotia Limited Liability Company.
The Children’s Place Canada Holdings, Inc., a Delaware Corporation.

TCP Investment Canada I Corp., a Nova Scotia Unlimited Liability Company.
TCP Investment Canada II Corp., a Nova Scotia Unlimited Liability Company.
The Children’s Place (Canada), LP, an Ontario Limited Partnership.
The Children’s Place Charitable Foundation, Inc., a New York not-for-profit Corporation.

The Children’s Place (Barbados) Inc., a Barbados Corporation.

Twin Brook Insurance Company, Inc., a New York Corporation.
The Children’s Place Services Company, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company.
Hoop Holdings, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company.
Hoop Retail Stores, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company.

Hoop Canada Holdings, Inc., a Delaware Corporation.

Hoop Canada, Inc., a New Brunswick Corporation.
The Children’s Place International Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., a foreign enterprise organized under the laws of the Peoples Republic of China.

EXHIBIT 23.1

THE CHILDREN’S PLACE RETAIL STORES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-47065 and 333-85834 of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. on
Form S-8 and in Registration Statement No. 333-88378 of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. on Form S-3 of our report dated April 11, 2006 relating to
the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries (which report is unqualified
and included an explanatory paragraph referring to the Company’s early adoption in 2005 and retrospective application in 2004 and 2003 of FASB Staff
Position (FSP) No. 13-1, “Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a Construction Period”) and our report dated April 11, 2006 relating to management’s
report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Children’s Place Retail
Stores, Inc., for the fiscal year ended January 28, 2006.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
April 11, 2006

EXHIBIT 31

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATIONS

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Ezra Dabah, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles:

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting
to the registrant’s auditors and the Audit Committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: April 11, 2006

By: /s/ EZRA DABAH
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Hiten D. Patel, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13A—15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others

within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles:

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting
to the registrant’s auditors and the Audit Committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: April 11, 2006

By:

/s/ HITEN D. PATEL
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

EXHIBIT 32

SECTION 906 CERTIFICATIONS

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Ezra Dabah, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. (the “Company”), pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, do hereby certify that to my knowledge:

1.

The annual report of the Company on Form 10-K for the year ended January 28, 2006 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.

The information contained in such annual report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Certification this 11th day of April, 2006.

By: /s/ EZRA DABAH
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
I, Hiten D. Patel, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of The Children’s Place Retail Stores, Inc. (the “Company”), pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, do hereby certify that to my knowledge:

1.

The annual report of the Company on Form 10-K for the year ended January 28, 2006 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.

The information contained in such annual report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have executed this Certification this 11th day of April, 2006.

By: /s/ HITEN D. PATEL
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

